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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
ON THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş.;

lndependent Auditors’ Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Iskenderun Demir ve Çerk A.Ş.
(the Company) as at 31 December 2015 and the related statement of profit or loss, statement of other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended and a summary of signiflcant accounting policies and explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsibJe for the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards published by the Public Oversight
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“P0K) of Turkey and for such internal controls as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error and/or fraud.

lndependent Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audil Dur audit
was conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of
Turkey and Auditing Standards which are part of the Turkish Auditing Standards issued by POA.
Those standards require that ethical requirements are complied with and that the independent audit is
planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

lndependent audit involves performing independent audit procedures to obtain independent audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The independent audit
procedures selected depend on our professional judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the fınancial statements, whether due to error and/or fraud. in making those
risk assessments; the entity’s internal control system is taken into consideration. Dur purpose,
however, is not to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control system, but to design
independent audit procedures that are appropriate for the circumstances in order to identify the
relation between the financial statements prepared by the Company and its internal control system.
Our independent audit includes also evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Company’s management, as weli as
evaluating the overali presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our independent audit is sufflcient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present faidy, in ali material respects, the
financial position of Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş. as at 31 December 2015 and their financiai
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Turkish Accounting
Standards.

Reports on Other Responsibilitles Arising From Regulatory Reguirements

1> in accordance with paragraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, no significant matter has come to our
attention that causes us to believe that the Company’s bookkeeping activities for the period 1
January —31 December 2015 and financiai statements are not in compilance with the code and
provisions of the Company’s articies of association in relation to flnanciai reporting.

2) in accordance with subparagraph 4, Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitted to
us the necessary explanations and provided required documents within the context of audit.

Mali Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi

(2)

YoungGiobai Limited

29 February 2016
Istanbul, Turkey
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(Convenience Translation into English ofFinancial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

iSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF FINANCİAL POSITİON AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amnunts are cxprcsscd in Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unlcss othenvise indicated.)

The details of the translation to presentation cunency of TRY explained in Note 2.1.

The accompanying notes form an integral part ofthese fınancial staternents.

(Auditeı (Audite (Aıuhıeı (Audile

Curreot Period Curreol Period Preous Period Preious Period

31 flecemhxr 31 Decemlrr 31 BecemIr 31 Deccmlxr

2015 2015 2014 2014

Note USD000 TRY000 I.SDt000 TRY000ASSFI’S

CurrentAsseis 912.203 2.652319 1.259.884 2.921.542

Cash and Cash Equiva’£nts 1 3.721 10.819 1.067 2.474

FLıancbl Derivathe lnstmnnts 5 7.718 21441 - -

Tmde Receivables 7 153.295 115.O 132.462 539.054

Dize Fmın RdaıedParıies 27 103.260 300.239 1 71.630 398.0/5

OtherTrade Receivables 7 50.035 145.481 60.822 /11.039

OtherReceivables 8 258.91! 752,897 138,923 1.017.820

Dee Frorn Relaled Panles 27 258.298 751.026 137.355 1.0/4.183

OtherReceivah/es 8 643 1.871 1.568 3.637

Inventories 9 478.785 1.392.115 576.299 1.336.379

Prepaid Ewenses 0 8A33 24.520 8,293 19.230

OtherCurrentAssets 17 1.310 3.807 2.840 6.585

Nen CurrenlAsseis 2.138.188 6.216.997 2.160.707 5.010.466

OtherReceivables 8 4.827 14.036 9.848 22.837

Financial Investnıents 27 79 27 63

FanciaI Dedvaıive lnstniıwnts 5 13.982 40.655 23.261 53.956

Pmperty. Planı and Equipment Il 2.063.629 6.000.209 2.075.205 4.812.193

Intangible Assets 12 47.873 139.195 48.054 111.433

Prepaid Ewenses 10 7.850 22.823 4.305 9.984

TOTAL ASSUİS 3.050391 8.869316 3.420.591 7,932,008



(Convenience Translation into English ofFinancial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF FINANCRL POSITJON AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed in Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

(AudIIet9 iArn!Ied) (AuIed) (AudiIe(»

Currcn( Period Cumnt Period Preüou5 Period Preüıs Period

il DecemIr 31 December il Dtcember 31 Decemltr

20(5 1015 1014 2013

UBIUfl Nole LrsD’ooo TRV000 LD000 TRV000

Curren: UaIi!ities 321328 934.292 497.555 1.153.782

Fbıan±1UabUies 6 3,183 9256 91532 216.892

Shun TennPanionoftnng temıFinancb(Uabili6es 6 (11.152 332.199 239.838 556.161

Fancial Dedvative InsImrrEnts 5 6.181 7.912 60 38

Tmde Payahles 7 83.200 241.912 76.2]! 76.772

Due le Re/atedParlies 27 8.808 25.611 5.444 /2.624

OıherTradePmvbles 7 74.392 2/6.30/ 70.787 /64.148

Olher Payables 8 4.589 13244 5.335 12.372

Due le Re/atedPar:ies 27
. 215 569

OtherPovahks 8 4.589 /3.344 5,090 11.803

Deferred Revenue 18 7.506 21.825 9.519 22.073

Curren: TaxUabilities 26 70.999 206438 31.248 72.461

Shon TennPnvisions 15 8536 24.819 8.635 20.047

!‘avabks forüq,kwee Brne6ts 14 16.051 46.671 14.723 34.142

OtherCuıwntUahi5ıies 7 6.83! 9.856 18.424 32.724

Nç Curren! U±Ii6es 160.830 1339.911 534.458 1239354

FıanciaI Uabılhks 6 168.350 489.786 277,915 644.456

FıanciaI DeıivatNe Iastnntnts 5 7226 21300 10138 23.741

Provğns örFırç[vee[3ene!iLs 14 70.637 205385 fl93 204.278

DeferredTasüaHhks 26 214.417 623,440 158212

2.268233 6395.113 2388378 5338372

ShareCapital 9 1.471.105 2,000,000 1.474.105 2.9UL000

In0ation Ağıstntnl to Capital 19 85 63 85 163

OlherCon’şrehensive lneon’o/Eşense Not ta be Rec!assifıed lo Ptofiİ/ (Lass) (19.061) (51.765) (22.039) (60.420)

Aciparial (Loss» Gole fimds 19 (19.06!) (51.765.) (22.039) (60.420)

OtherConşrehensive IncontiEwense (ü be Reclassilied tü Prn(itİOoss) (4.148) 2,105,316 (2.481) 762.973

<‘as!; FIor I/edgingResenes /9 (4/48) (/2.060) (2.48/) (5.754)

fhreign Gurreney Trans/alion Resenes 19 2.] / 7,376 . 768.727

Reshicled Resenes Assorled ‘mmhtfıi 19 68.101 165,142 19.751 38.913

Relained Eınings 19 537.563 901.013 463.235 90023!

Net l’mli( lbr(heftriod 211.588 575243 JSS,911 997.011

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND [QUITY 3.05039! 8369316 3.42059! 7.932.008

The detalis of the translation to presentation cunency of TRY explained in Note 2.!.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fınancial statements.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

iSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcssed as Thousand Turkish Lira (‘TRY Thousand”) unless otlıcnvise indicated.)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fınanchıl statements.

(Audiled) (Audi(ed) (Andiled) (Andiled)
Currenl Period Current Period Previons Period Previous P6rind
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(Convenience Translation into English ofFinancial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcsscd as Tlıousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless oıhenvise indkaıed.)

NOTE 1- CONWANY’S ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS

Iskenderun Demir ve Çelik A.Ş. (“the Company”) registered in 12 November 1968 and published at
19 November 1968 in the trade registry gazette. The Company established in 3 October 1970 in the
southern of Turkey on the Mediteranean eoast in the distance of 17 km from Iskenderun in Payas
region. The principal aetivities of the Company are production and sale of iron products, fiat and long
steel products and Iheir by-products. The Company’s main products are billlet, slab, coil, plate, wire
rod and by-products are coke, benzol, ammonium sulphate and slag.

The Company had become an affıliated company of the Turkish Iron and Steel Administration with
the decision no 93/T-85 dated September 10, 1993 of Supreme Planning Commiuee. Then with the
decision no 98/20 of Privatization Committee dated March 2, 1998, the Company was transferred ta
Turkish Privatization Administration. Ultimateiy, shares of the Company were transferred ta Ereğli
Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. (“Erdemir”) in 31 Januaıy 2002 by the Turkish Privatization
Administration with the decision no 2001/08 which dated February 8,2001. The immediate parent of
Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş 15 Ataer Holding A.Ş. The ultimate controlling party is Ordu
Yardımlaşma Kurumu.

The main operations of the subsidiaıy company and the share percentage of the İsdemir for the
company are as follows:

Name of the Company Country of 2015 2014
operations Operations Share % Share %

Teknopark Hatay A.Ş. Turkey R8tD Centre 5 5

The registered address of the Company is Karayılan Beldesi, 31319 Iskenderun/KATAY.

The number of the personnel employed by the Company as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014 are as follows:

3! December 2015 31 December 2014
Personnel Personnel

Paid Hourly Personnel 3.446 3.795
Paid Monthly Personnel 1.816 1.818

5.262 5.613

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation

The Company ınaintains its legal books of account and prepares their statutory ünancial stateınents
(“Statuton’ Financial Stateınents”) in aceordance with accounting principles issued by the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC”) and tax legislation.

The Companjs finaneial statements and disclosures have been prepared in accordance with the
communiqu numbered 11-14,1 “Communiqu on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital
Markets” (“the Communiqu”) announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) (hereinafter wilI
be refered to as “the CMB Accounting Standards”) on 13 June 2013 which is published on Official
Gazette numbered 28676. The CMB Accounting Standards contains Turkish Accounting Standards
and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards with their notes and interpretations.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts am expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unlcss othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

in accordance with article 5’ of the CMB Reporting Standards, companies should apply Turkish
Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards and its interpretations issued by the
Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority of Turkey (“POA”).

Functiona! and Reporting Currency

TRY k accepted as the Company’s functional and presentation curency until 30 June 2013. Due to
changes in sale and collection policies of Company. the functional currency changed from TRY ta US
Dollars in aceordance with TAS 21 (“The Effects of Foreign Exchange Rates”) starting from the 1
July 2013. Therefore the Company’s functional currency is US Dollars as of 31 December 2015 and
3 1 December 2014.

Presentation currencv translation

Presentation currency of the financial statements is TRY. According to hAS 21 (“The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”) financial statements, that are prepared in USD Dollars for the
Company have been translated in TRY as the following method:

a) The assets and liabilities on financial position as of 31 December 2015 are tmnslated from
USD Dollars irna TRY using the Central Bank of Turkey’s exchange mte which is TRY
2,9076=US $ t and TRY 3.1776=EUR 1 on the balance sheet date (31 December 2014: TRY
2,3189= US S 1. TRY 2.8207=EUR 1).

b) For the twelve months period ended 31 December 2015. income statements are translated
from the average TRY 2,7187 = VS $ 1 and TRY 3,OI8IEUR 1 rates of 2015 Januaıy -

December period (31 December 2014: TRY 2,1868 = US $ 1 TRY 2,9059 = 1 EUR).
c) Exchange differences are shown in other comprehensive income as of foreign currency

translation resen’e.
d) The diWerences between presentation of statutoıy and historical figures are recognised as

translation diWerences under equity. Al! capital. capital measures and other measures are
represneted with their statutory figures, other equitş accounts are represented with their historic
cost figures in the accompanying tinancial statements.

USD amounts presented in the tinancial slatements

The figures in USD amounts presented in the accompanying financial statemerns comprising the
statements of tinancial position as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, statement of income
and other comprehensive income. and statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2015
represent the financial statements within the frame ot’ functional currency change that the Company
has made, which is effective as ofJuly 1, 2013, prepared in accordance with the TAS 21- Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

Going concern

The Cornpany prepared its financial statements in accordance with the going concern assurnption.

Approval of the financial statements

The tinancial statements have been approved and authorized to be published on 29 February 2016 by
the Board of Directors. The General Assembly has the authority to revise the tinancial statements.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkisb — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expresscd as Tlıousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand’) unless othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The ehanges in accounting estimates affecting the current period are recognized in the current period,
the changes in accounting estimates affecting both in the current and future periods, prospeotiveiy.
Where there are no transition reqııirements For any changes or optional signiflcant changes in
accoıınting policies and identifıed accounting errors, those are applied retrospectively and prior period
financial statements are restated accordingly.

2.3 Comparative Information and Restatement of Financial Statements with Prior Periods

The Company’s fınancial statements are presented in aceordance with the communiqu numbered 11-
14,1 “Communiqu on the Principles of Financial Reporting in Capital Markets” (“the Communiqu”)
announced by the Capital Markets Board (“CMB”). The Company’s financial statements are prepared
in comparison with the previous period in order to allow for the determination of the financial position
and performance trends in accordance with a new illustrative financial statements and guidance that
has been effective from the interim periods ended after 30 June 2013.

Reclassifications at financial position are as follows:

(Previously
Reported) (Restated) (Difference)

Account 31 December 2014 31 December 2014 31 December 2014

Short Term Other PayabIes° 3.065 12.372 9.307

Payables for Employee Benefıts» 43.449 34.142 (9.307)

(1) TRY 9.307 thousand emphoyees’ income tax payables that was reported under “Payables for
Emphoyee Benefits”, is reclassifed under “Short Term Other Payables” in financial statements as of3 1
December 2014.

Reclassiflcations aL income statement are as follows:

(Previoıısly
Reported) (Restated) (DiFference)
Iianuary- lianuary- llanuary

Account 31 December 2014 31 December 2014 3! December 2014

General Administrative Expenses (_)W (70.74!) (77.740) (6.699)

Other Operating Expenses ()( (61.657) (54.958) 6.699

Financial Income<2 47.686 129.983 82.297

Financial Expenses (132.801) (215.098) (82.297)
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.3 Comparative Information and Restatement of Financial Statements with Prior Periods
(cont’d)

(1) Provision for doubtful receivables TRY 6.699 thousand which were reported under “Other
Operating Expenses (-)“ was reciassifled to ‘General Administrative Expenses (-)“ on the statement of
income for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(2) Foreign exchange gam (net) TRY 27.390 thousand out of TRY 82.297 thousand whieh were
reported under “Financial Income” was reciassifled to foreign exchange Ioss from deferred tax base
under “Financial Expense (-)“ for the year ended 31 December 2014.

2.4 Signiticant Judgments and Estimates of the Company on Application of Accounting Policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions prospectively while preparing its financial statements.
These accounting estimates are rareiy identical to the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
may cause signiflcant adjustments to the canying values of assets and Iiabilities in the following
reporting periods are listed below:

2.4.1 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company calculates depreciation for the fıxed assets by taking into account their production
amounts and useful lives that are stated in Note 2.7.3 and 2.7.4 (Note 11, Note 12).

2.4.2 Deferred tax

The Company recognizes deferred tax on the temporaıy timing differences between the canying
amounts of assets and Iiabiiities in the financial statements prepared in accordance with TAS and
statutory financial statements which is used in the compulation of taxable profit. The related
differences are generally due to the timing difference of the tax base of some income and expense
items between financial statements prepared in accordance with statutoıy and TAS.

2.4.3 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The Company values its derivative financial instruments by using the foreign exchange and interest rate
estimations and based on the valuation estimates of the market values as of the balance sheet date (Note
5).

2.4.4 Provision for doubtful receivables

Allowance for doııbtful receivables reflect the future Ioss that the Company anticipates to incur ftom
the trade receivables as of the balance sheet date which is subject to collection risk considering the
current economic conditions. During the impairment test for the receivables, the debtors are assessed
with their prior year performances, their credit risk in the current market, their performance after the
balance sheet date tıp to the issuing dale of the fınancial statements; and also the renegotiation
conditions with these debtors are considered. The provision for doubtful receivables is presented in
Note 7 and Note 8.
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounls are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (‘TRY Tiıousand”) unlcss otlıcnvise indicaled.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.4.5 Provision for inventories

During the assessrnent of the provision for inventory the foilowing are considered; analyzing the
inventories physically and historicaliy. considering the employment and usefulness of the inventories
respecring to the technicai personnel view. Sales prices listed and related data by sales prices of
realized sales after balance sheet date, average discount rates giyen for sale and expected cost incuned
to seli are used to determine the net realizable value of the inventories. As a result of this, the
provision for inventories with the net realizable values below the costs and the siow moving
inventories are presented in Note 9.

2.4.6 Provisions for employee benefits

Actuarial assurnptions about discount rates, infiation rates. future salary inereases and employee
tumover rates are made in calculate the Company’s provision for employee beneflts. The details
related with the defıned benefit plans are stated in Note 14.

2.4.7 Provision for Iawsuits

Provision for lawsuits is evaluated by the Company Management based on opinions of Company’s
Legal Council and legal consultants. The Company Management determines the amount of provisions
based on best estimates. As of the balance sheet date, the provision for lawsuits is stated in Note 15.

2.4.8 lmpairments on Assets

The Company performs impairment tests for assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization in
case of being not possible to prevent recoveıy of the assets at each reporting period. Assets are
grouped at the lowest levels which there are separately identifıable cash flows for evaluation of
impaintent (cash generating units). As a result of the impairment works performs by the Company
management, as of the repotting date any impairrnent except calculated provision on non-financial
assets has not been estimated.

2.5 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts ait reported with their net values in the
balance sheet where eitler there is a legally enforceable right to olfset the recognized amounts or
there k an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liabiiity simultaneously.
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts am expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless olhenvisc indicaled.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation (cont’d)

2.6 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements as at 31 December 2015 are
consistent wiih those of the previous fınancial year, except for the adoption of new and amended
TFRS and TFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 Januaıy 2015. The effects of these standards and
interpretations on the Company’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in the
related paragraphs.

The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 Januaıy 2015 are as
fo 1 Iows:

TAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions (Amendment)

TAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefıt plans. The amendments clarHı that, if the arnount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of senice. an entity is permiued to
recognize such comributions as a reduction in the sen’ice cost in the period in which the
sen’ice k rendered. instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. The
amendment did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the
Company.

Annual lmprovements to TASPrFRSs

in September 2014. POA issued the below amendments to the standards in relation to “Annual
lrnprovements - 2010—2012 Cycle” and “Annual lmprovements - 2011—2013 Cycle. The amendments
which are effective as atI JuIy 2014.

Annual Improvements - 2010—2012 Cycle

• TFRS 2 Share-based Payment

Defınitions relating to performance and service conditions which are vesting conditions are
ciarifled. The amendment is effective prospectively.

• TFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendrnent clarifıes tlıat al) contingent considemtion armngernents classifıed as
Iiabilities (or assets) arising from a business combination should be subseqııently measured at
fair value throııgh profit or Ioss whether or not Ihey fail within the scope of IAS 39 (or IFRS
9. as appiicable). The amendment did not Iıave a significant impact on the financial position
or performance of the Company.

• TFRS 8 Operating Segments

The changes are as foilows: 1) An entity must disclose the judgements made by management
in applying the aggregation criteria in LFRS 8, including a brief description of operating
segrnents that have been aggregated and the economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross
margins) ıısed to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’. ii) The reconciliation of segment
assets to total assets is oniy required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to the
chief operating decision maker. The amendrnent did not have a signifıcant impact on the
tinancial position or perfomiance of the Company.
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts art cxpresscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unlcss ollıenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.6 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

• TAS 16 Properiy, Plani and Equipment and TAS 38 Intangible Assets

The amendment to TAS 16.35(a) and TAS 38.80(a) ciarifles that revaluation can be
performed, as rollows:i) Adjust the gross carıying amount of the asset to market valuc or ii)
determine the market value of the canying amount and adjust the gross canying amount
proportionateiy 50 that the resulting carıying amount equals the market value. The
amendment did not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

• TAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The amendment ciarifles that a management entity — an entity that provides key management
personnel services — is a related party subject to the related party disclosures. . in addition, an
entity that uses a management entity 15 required to disclose the expenses incured for
management services. The amendment did not have mı impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

Annual Improvements —2011—2013 Cycle

• TFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendment ciarifles that: 1) Joint arrangements are outside the scope of TFRS 3. not just
joint ventures ii) The scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial
statemenis of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment did not have an impact on the
fınancial position or perfornance of the Company.

• TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurernent

The portfolio exception in TFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial Iiabilities and
other contracts within the scope of RS 39 (or IFRS 9. as applicable). The amendment did not
have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Company.

• TAS 40 Investment Property

The amendment ciarifles the interrelationship of TFRS 3 and TAS 40 in determining whether
the transaction is the purchase of an asset or business combination. The amendment did not
have an impact on the önancial position or performance of the Company.

Srandards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective
up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company wili make the
necessary changes if not indicated othenvise, which wiil be affecting the financial statements and
disciosures, when the new standards and interpretations become effective.
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ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expresscd as Tlıousand TurL-ish Lira CTRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.6 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Repoıting Standards (cont’d)

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (cont’d):

TFRS 9 Financial lnstruments — Ciassification and measurement

As arnended in December 2012 and Februaıy 2015, the new standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1. 2018, with early adoption permitted. Phase 1 of this
new TFRS introduces new requirements for ciassii’ying and measuring fınancial instruments.
The amendments made to TFRS 9 wilI mainly affect the ciassification and measurement of
financial assets and measurernent of fair value option (FVO) Iiabilities and requires that the
ehange in fair value of a FVO financial Iiability attributable to credit risk is presented under
other comprehensive income. The Cornpany wili quantit’ the effect in conjunction with the
other phases, when the final standard including alI phases is adopted by POA.

TFRS Il Acquisition ofan Interest in a Joint Operation (Amendment)

TFRS Il is amended to provide guidance on the accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operations in which the activity constitutes a business. This amendment requires the
acquirer of an interest in a joint operation in which the activiW constitutes a business, as
defined in TERS 3 Business Combinations, to apply alI of the principles on business
combinations accounting in TFRS 3 and other TFRSs except for those principles that conflict
with the guidance in this TERS. in addition. the acquirer shall disclose the information
required by TFRS 3 and other TFRSs for business combinations. These amendments are to be
applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1, 2016. Earlier
application k permitted. The amendments wiil not have an impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.

• TAS 16 and TAS 38- Claritication ofAcceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amonisation
(Arnendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38)

The amendments to TAS 16 and TAS 38, have prohibited the use of revenue-based
depreciation for property, plant and equipment and signiflcantly limiting the use of revenue
based arnortisation for intangible asseis. The amendments are eWective prospectively for
annual periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1, 2016. Earlier application is permined. The
amendments wili not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the
Corn pany.

• TAS 16 Propertv, Plant and Equiprnent and TAS 41 Agriculture (Aınendınent) — Bearer
Plants

TAS 16 is amended to provide guidance that bearer plants, sııch as grape vines. rubber trees
and oli palrns should be accounted for in the same way as property, plant and equipment in
TAS 16.
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounls are expressed as Tlıousand Turkish Lira (TRY Tlıousand”) unlcss othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.6 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (cont’d):

• TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equiprnent and TAS 41 Agriculture (Amendment) — Bearer
Plants (cont’d)

Once a bearer plant is mature, apart from bearing produce, its biological transformation is no
longer signiflcant in generating future economic beneflts. The oniy significant future
economic beneflts it generates come from the agricultural produce that it creates. Because
Iheir operation is similar to that of manufacturing, either the cost model or revaluation model
should be applied. The produce growing on bearer plants wili remain within the seope of TAS
41, measured at fair value less costs to seil. Entities are required to apply the amendments for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not applicable for the Company and wili not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

• TFRS 10 and TAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an lnvestor and its Associate
or Joint Venture (Amendments)

ln Februaıy 2015, amendments issued to TFRS 10 and TAS 28, to address the acknowledged
inconsisteney between the requirements in TFRS 10 and TAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiaıy that is contributed to an associate or ajoint venture, to clarify that an
investor recognizes a hill gam or Ioss on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a
business, as defined in TFRS 3, between an investor and its associate orjoint venture. The
gam or loss resulting from the re-measurement at fair value of an investment retained in a
former subsidiary should be recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in
that former subsidiary. An entity shall apply those amendments prospectiveiy to transactions
occuring in annual periods beginning on or after ianuary 1, 2016. Earlier application is
permifted. The amendment will not have an impact on the financial position or performance
of the Company.

• TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28: lnvestment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
(Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

In February 2015, amendments issued to TFRS 10, TFRS 12 and TAS 28, to address the
issues that have arisen in applying the investment entities exception under TFRS 10 Financial
Statements. The amendments are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after Januaıy
1, 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not applicable for the Company
and wilI not have an impact on the fınancial position or performance of the Company.

• TAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to TAS 1)

In February 2015, amendrnents issued to TAS 1. Those amendments inelude narrow-focus
improvements in the following five areas: Materiality. Disaggregation and subtotals, Notes
structure, Disclosure of accounting policies, Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income (OCI) arising frorn equity accounted investments. The amendments are applicable for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. Earlier apphication is permitted. These
amendments are not expected have signifıcant impact on the notes to the financial statements
of the Company.
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.6 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Siandards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (cont’d):

Annual Improvements to TFRSs - 2012-2014 Cycle

in February 2015, POA issued, Annual lmprovements to TFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle. The document sets
out fıve amendments to four standards, excluding those standards that are consequentially amended,
and the related Basis for Conclusions. The standards affected and the subjects of the amendments are:

• IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations — ciarifles that
changes in methods of disposal (through sale or distribution to owners) would not be
considered a new plan ofdisposal, rather it Isa continuation of the original plan

• IFRS 7 Financial lnstruments: Diselosures — ciarifles that 1) the assessment of servicing
contracts that ineludes a fee for the continuing involvement of fınancial assets in accordance
with IFRS 7; ii) the offsetting disclosure requirements do not apphy to condensed interim
financial statements, unless such disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report

• IAS 19 Employee Benetits — clarifles that market depth of high quahity corporate bonds is
assessed based on the currency in which the obhigation is denominated, rather than the
country where the obligation is located

• IAS 34 interim Financial Reporting —clarifles that the required interim disclosures must either
be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim
financial statements and wherever they are included within the interim financial report

The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the international Accounting
Standards Board (RSB) but not issued by Pubhic Oversight Authority (POA)

The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the
IASB but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the fınancial statements. However, these
standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued by
the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS. The Company wiil make the necessary changes to
its financial statements after the new standards and interpretations are issued and become effective
under TFRS.

Annual Improvements — 2010—2012 Cycle

• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

As clarified in the Basis for Conclusions short-term receivables and payables with no stated
interest rates can be held at invoice amounts when the effect of discounting is immaterial. The
amendment is effective immediately.

Annual Improvements — 2011—2013 Cycle

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

in May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The new
five-step model in the standard provides the recognition and measurement requirements of
revenue. The standard apphies to revenue from contracts with customers and provides a model
for the sale of some non-financial assets that are not an outpııt of the entity’s ordinaiy
activities (e.g., the sale of property, plant and equipment or intangibles).
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NOTE 2— BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.6 Adoption of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual Improvements—2011—2013 Cycle(cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d)

IFRS 15 original effective date was January 1, 2017. However, in September 2015, IASB
decided to defer the effeetive date to reporting periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1, 2018,
with early adoption permitted. Entities wilI transition to the new standard following either a
fulI retrospective approach or a modifled retrospective approach. The modifıed retrospective
approach would allow the standard to be applied beginning with the current period, with no
restatement of the comparative periods, but additional disclosures are required. The Company
k in the process of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance
of the Company.

• IFRS 9 Financial lnstruments - Final standard (2014)

in July 2014 the IASB published the Fınal version of IFRS 9 Financial instruments. The final
version of IFRS 9 brings together the classifıcation and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting phases of the IASB’s project to replace RS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 is built on a logical, single elassification and
measurement approach for financial assets that reflects the business model in which they are
managed and their cash flow characteristics. Built upon this 15 a forward-looking expected
credit loss model that wilI result in more timely recognition of ban losses and is a single
model that is applicable to alI financial instruments subject to impairment accounting. la
addition, IFRS 9 addresses the so-called ‘own credit’ issue, whereby banks and others book
gains through profit or loss asa result of the value of their own debt falling due to a decrease
in credit worthiness when they have elected to measure that debt at fair value. The Standard
also includes an improved hedge accounting model to better link the economics of risk
management with its accounting treatment. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018. However, the Standard is available for early application. in
addition, the own credit changes can be early applied in isolation without otherwise changing
the accounting for financial instruments. The Company is in the process of assessing the
impact of the standard on Fınancial position or performance of the Company.

• IFRS 16 Leases

In January 2016, the IASB has published a new standard, IFRS 16 ‘Leases’. The new standard
brings most leases on-balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the
distinetion between operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting however remains largeiy
unchanged and the distinction between operating and Fınance leases is retained. IFRS 16
supersedes IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and related interpretations and is effective for periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2019, with eariier adoption permitted if IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ has also been applied. The Company is in the process of assessing
the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Company.

• IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
(Amendments)

in January 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes.
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.6 Adoptioıı of New and Revised Financial Reporting Standards (cont’d)

Annual lmprovements —2011—2013 Cycle (cont’d)

IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
(Amendments) (cont’d)

The amendments cIariİ’ how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured at fair value. The amendments ciaritSı the requirements on recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised losses, to address diversity in practice. These amendments are to be
retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with earlier
application permifled. However, on initial application of the amendment, the change in the
opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recognised in opening retained
eamings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change
between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. If the Cornpany applies
this relief, it shall disclose that fact. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of
the amendments on financial position or performance of the Company.

fAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

in Januaıy 2016, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’. The
amendments are intended to clarii’y IAS 7 to improve information provided to users of
financial statements about an entity’s financing activities. The improvements to disclosures
require companies to provide information about changes in their financing liabilitles. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after Januaıy 1, 2017 with
earlier application permined. When the Company First applies those amendments, it is not
required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. The Company is in the
process of assessing the impact of the amendments on Fınancial position or performance of
the Company.

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies

Valuation principles and accounting policies used in the preparation of the Fınancial statements are as
follows:

2.7.1 Revenue recognition

Revenııe is measured at the fair vahue of the received or receivable amount. The estimated customer
retuns, rebates, and other similar ahhowances are deducted from thıis arnount.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when al! the following conditions are satisFıed:

• The Company transfers the signiFıcant risks and beneFıts of the ownership of the goods to the
buyer;

• The Company retains neither a continuing managerial involvement usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

• The amount of revenue is measured reliabiy;
• it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction wiih flow to the Company and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred due to the transaction are measured reliably.
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NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Signifıcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.1 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

Dividend and interest revenue

Interest revenue 15 accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carıying amount. The
Company’s interest income from time deposits is recognized in financial income. The Company’s
interest income from sales with maturitles is recognized in other operating income.

The Company’s dividend income from equity investments 15 recognized when shareholders can get
dividens.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

2.7.2 lnventories

Inventories are valued at the Iower of cost or net realizable value. The costs, including an appropriate
portion of flxed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories Iıeld by the method most
appropriate to the particular class of inventory, with the majority valued by using the monthly
weighted average method. Net realizable vaiue is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.7.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment purchased before 30 June 2013 are disclosed in the financial statements
at their indexed historical cost for infiation effects as at 30 June 2013, on the other hand the purchases
made in 30 June 2013 and in later periods are presented at their historical cost, less depreciation and
impairment loss. Except for Iand and construction in progress, other tangible assets are depreciated
according to straight-Iine basis or units of production method basis using the expected ııseful lives and
production amounts of the assets.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
clıanges in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any sııch indication
exists and wlıere the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash
generating units are wriflen down to their recoverable amoıınts. The recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is the greater of net selling price and valııe in lise.

in assessing the value in Lise, the estimated future cash tlows are discounled to their present vaiııes
using a pre-taK discount rate tlıat reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specifıc to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largeiy independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment
losses are recognized in the income statement.

19



(Convenience Translation into English ofFinancial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELiK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(AmounLs ara expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (‘TRY ThoLısand”) unless othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.73 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

The rates that are used to depreciate the fıxed assets are as follows

Rates

Buildings 2-16%
Land improvements 2-33% and units of production level
Machineıy and equipment 3-50% and units of production level
Vehicles 5-25% and units of production level
FLımiture and flxtures 5-33%
Other tangible flxed assets 5-25%

2.7.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased hefore 30 June 2013 are recognized at their acquisition cost indexed for
infiation effects as at 30 lune 2013, on the other hand the purehases made in and after 30 June 2013
are recognized at acquisition cost Iess any amortization and impairment Ioss. Intangible assets are
amortized principally on a straight-iine basis over their estimated useftil lives and production
amounts. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, and any changes in the estimate are accounted for on a prospective basis.

The amortization rates of the intangible assets are stated below:

Rates

Rights 2-33%

2.7.5 Impairment of asseis

Assets subject to depreciation and amortization are tested for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate the can-ying value may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
for the amount by which the asset’s canying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of net selling price and vaiue in use. Recoverable amounts are estimated for
individual assets (for the cash-generating unit). Non-financial assets ihat are impaired are evaluated
for reversal of impairment amount at each reporting date.

2.7.6 Borrowing cosis

Borowing costs that are directly aaributable to the acquisition, constmction or production of
quahiR’ing assets. one that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale, are capitalized
as part of the cost of that asset in the period in which the asset is prepared for its intended ııse or sahe.
Investment revenues arising from the ıemporary utilization of the unused poıtion of facility loans are
netted off from the costs eligible for capitalization.

Al! other borowing costs are recognized directiy in the incorne statemeat of the period in which they
are incurred.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcsscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicaled.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.7 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and fınancial liabilitles are recognized in the Company’s balance sheet when the
Company becomes a legal party for the contractual provisions of İlie fınancial instrument.

Financial assets

Financial assets, are initially measured at fair value, Iess transaction costs except for those financial
assets classitied as at fair value through profit or Ioss, which are initially measured at fair value. AlI
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financiai asset within the
timeframe established by the market.

Financial assets are ciassifled into the following specifled eategories: fınancial assets as ‘at fair value
through profit or Ioss’, ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale financial assets’ and ‘Ioans
and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effedüve interest method

The effective interest rate method is a metliod of calculating the amortized cost of a fınancial asset
and of allocating the interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the ratio
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts throııgh the expected life of the financial asset to
the net present value of the fınancial asset or in a shorter period where appropriate.

Incomes related to the debt instruments that are heid to maturity and are available for sale, and
financial assets that are ciassifled as loans and receivables are calculated according to the eflective
interest rate method.

Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables are initially recognized at their fair value. Subsequently,
receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Inıpairment offinancial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or Ioss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, asa result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash fiows of the investment have been impacted.

For receivabhes, the amoıınt of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rnte.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprcsscd as Thousand Turkish Lira CTRY Thousand”) unlcss othcnvisc indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.7 Financial instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

hupainnenı offlnancial asse!s ‘coııt ‘d)

The canying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for alI financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount 15 reduced tiırough the use of
an allowance account. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written offagainst the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously wrillen off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the canying amount of the allowance account are recognized in the income
statement under general administrative expenses.

With the exception of available for sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment Ioss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profıt
or loss to the extent that the canying amount of the investment at the date the impairment 15 reversed
does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of available for sale equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment hoss is recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivaleııts

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly
iiquid investments which their maturities are three-months or less from date ofacquisition and that are
readiiy convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insigniflcant risk of changes in
value. The carıying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

Financial Iiabihities

Financial liabihities and equity instrurnents issued by the Company are classifled according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial Iiability and
an equity instrument. An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Company after deducting alI of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Financial liabilities are classitied as either financial liabilitles ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or
other financial liabilities.

Oıherjinanckd ilahilitles

Other financial liabilities are initially accounted at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Subsequenthy other financial Iiabilities are accounted at amortized cost using the effective interest
rnetlıod, with interest expense recognized on an effective interest rate basis.
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(Convenience Transiation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy issued in Turkish — Sec Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.7 Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial Iiabilities (cont’d)

Otherfinancial /iabiliıies cont W)

The effective interest method Isa method of caiculating the amortized cost of a fınancial liabiliiy and
of allocating the interest expense to the reievant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimaled future cash payments through the expected life of the fınancial
iiability, or, where appropriate. a shorter period to the net carıying amount.

Derivative fınancial instruments and hedee accounting

Derivatives are initialiv recognized aL cost of acquisition and are subsequently accounted to their fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The method of recognizing the result of gam or Ioss 15
dependent on the nature of the item being hedged.

On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the Company designates certain derivatives as either
a hedge of the fair value oLa recognized asset or iiabiiity (fair value hedge) or a hedge from changes
that couid affect the statement of income due to a specifıc risk in cash flow of a forecasted transaction
(cash flow hedge). Fair vaiue of the Company’s interest swap contracts is determined by valuation
methods depending on anaiyzabie market data.

Changes in the fair value of the derivatives that are designated and qualifled as cash flow hedges and
that are highly effective. are recognized in equity as hedging reserve. Where the forecasted transaction
or fırm commitment results in the recognition of an asset or a iiability. the gains and losses previonsiy
booked under equity are tnnsferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or Iiabilitv. Othenvise. amounts booked under equity are transferred to the
statement of income and ciassifıed as revenne or expense in the period in which the hedged item
affects the statement of income.

\Vhen the hedging instrument expires. is sold. or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
than hedge accounting is terminated. Any cumulative gam or Ioss existing in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recogniıed when the commined or forecasted transaction ultimateiv is
recognized in the statement of income. However. if the hedged transaction is not realized, the
cıımulative gam or Ioss ihat was reponed in equity k immediateiv transfered to the profıt or Ioss of
the current period.

The Cornpany measures the derivative financial instruments heid for fair value hedge purpose with
their fair vaiues and recognizes thern in the income statement under fınancial incorne/(expense).
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts am cxprcsscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (‘TRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.8 The Effects of Foreign Exchange Rate Clıanges

The Company’s Fınancial statements am enciosed with the funetional curreney. The Company’s
financial position and operating results are enciosed with the Turkish Lira (“TRY”) which is
presentation curreney of the financial statements.

The Company records foreign cunency (currencies other than the functional cureney of the related
company) transactions using exehange rates of the date the transaction is completed. Foreign currency
monetary items are evaluated with exehange rates as of reporting date and arising foreign exchange
income/expenses are recorded in statement of income. Ali monetary assets and liabilities are
evaluated with exchange rates of the reporting date and reiated foreign currency translation
differences am transfened to statement of income. Non-monetary foreign cıırrency items that are
recognized at cost are evaluated with historic exchange rates. Non-monetaıy foreign curreney items
that are recognized al fair value are evaluated with exchange rates of the dates their fair values are
determined.

2.7.9 Subsequent Events

Subsequent events include ali events that take piace between the balance sheet dale and the dale of
authorization for the release of the balance sheet, although the events occurred after the
announcements related to the net proflüloss or even after the pubiic disciosure of other selective
flnaneial information.

In the case that events occur requiring an adjustment, the Company adjusts the amounts recognized in
its financial statements to reflect the adjustments after the balance sheet date.

2.7.10 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past legal or
subtie event, where it k probable that the Company wilI be required to settle that obligation and when
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent iiabilities are assessed
continuously to determine the probability of outflow of the economically beneficial assets. For
contingent iiabilities, when an outflow of resources embodying economic beneflts are probable,
provision is recognized for this contingent liability in the period when the probability has changed,
except for the cases where a reliable estimate cannot be made.
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(Convenience Translation into English ofFinancial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unlcss othenvise indicated,)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Signifıcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.11 Related Parties

A related party is a person or entiiy that k related to reporting entity, the entity that is preparing its
financial statements

(a) A person or a ciose member of that persons family is related to a reporting entity ifthat person:

(i) has control orjoint control over the repofling entity;
(ii) has signiflcant influence over the reporting entity; or
(ili) k a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity.

(b) An entfty is related to a reponing entity ifany of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means tlıat each
parent. subsidiaıy and fellow subsidiaıy k related to the others).

(ii) One entity k an associate orjoint venture of the other entity (or atı associate orjoint venture
ofa member ofa group of which the other entity is a member).

(ili) Both entities arejoint ventures of the same third party.
(Iv) One entity is ajoint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third

entitv.
(v) The entitv k a post-employment benefıt plan for the benefıt of employees of either the

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itseif
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entitv is controlled orjointly controlled by a person identifled in (a).
(vii) A person identifıed in (a)(i) has signiFıcant influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction Isa transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
anda related party, regardless of whether a price 15 charged.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounls are cxpresscd as Thousand Turkish Lira C’TRY Thousand”) unless othcrwise indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.12 Taxation and Deferred Income Taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and defened tax.

Current tax

The tax currentiy payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profıt differs from profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in future and it further exciııdes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s
liability for current tax is calcuiated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the baiance sheet date.

Defered tax

Deferred tax is determined by caiculating the temporaıy differences between the canying amounts of
assets/iiabilities in the financial statements and the coresponding tax bases, used in the computation
of the taxable profıt, using curently enacted tax rates. Deferred tax Iiabilities are generaliy recognized
for ali taxable temporaıy differences where deferred tax assets resulting from deductibie temporaıy
differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxabie profit wili be availabie
against which the deductible temporaıy difference can be utilized. Such assets and iiabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) ofother assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxabie
profit nor the accounting profıt.

Deferred tax iiabiiities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference wili
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporaıy
ditlerences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized if it is probable that
there wili be suWıcient taxable profıts against which to utilize the beneflts of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeabie future.

The carrying amount of defered tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profıts wiil be available to allow alI or part
of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the hiability is sealed or the asset reahized, based on tax rates (and tax iaws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement ofdeferred tax Iiabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the reporting date. to recover or settle the carıying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legaliy enforceable right to set otlcurrent
tax assets against curent tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes ievied by the sarne
taxation authority and the Company intends to settie its current tax assets and hiabihities on a net basis.
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(Convenience Translation into English ofFinancial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TÜ THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amcunis are cxpressed as Timosand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless olhenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuatioıt Principles Applied / Signifıcant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.12 Taıation and Deferred Income Taxes (cont’d)

Current and deferred fax for the period

Current and deferred fax are recognized as an expense or income in the incorne statement, except
when they relate to the items credited or debited directly to the equity (in this case the deferred tax
related to these items is also recognized directly in the equity), or where they arise from the initial
accounting of a business combination.

2.7.13 Employee Benefits

According to the Turkish law and union agreements, employee termination payments are made to
employees in the case of retiring or involııntarihy leaving. Such payments are considered as a part of
defined retirement benefıt plan in accordance with TAS 19 (revised) “Employee Benefits” (“TAS
19”).

The termination indemnities accounted in the balance sheet and seniority incentive premium in
accordance with the union agreements in force represent the present value of the residual obligation.
Actuarial gains and losses, on the other hand, are recognized in the statement of other comprehensive
income.

The Company makes certain assumptions about discount rates, infiation rates, future salary increases
and employee turnover rates in calculation of provisions for employee beneflts. The present value of
employee benefits k calculated by an independent actuary and some changes are done in accounting
assumptions used in calculations. The impact of the changes in assumptions is recognized in the
statement of income. The details related with the defined benefit plans are stated in Note 14.

Liabilities due to unused vacations classifled as provisions due to employee beneflts are accrued and
discounted if the discount effect is material.

The Company is required to pay social insurance premiums to the Social Security Agency. As long as
it pays these insurance premiums, the Company does not have any further obligation. These premiums
are refiected in the payroli expenses incurred in the period.

2.7.14 Government Grants and lncentives

Governrnent grants and incentives are recognized af fair value when there is assurance that these
grants and incentives wil! be received and the Company has met al! conditions required. Govemment
grants and incentives related to costs are recognized as revenue during the periods they are matched
with the costs they wilI cover.

2.7.15 Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows during the period are classifıed and reported as operating, investing and fınancing
activities in the staternent of cash flows.

Cash flows arising from operating activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided by
the Company’s steel products and by-products sales activities.
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenvisc indicated.)

NOTE 2- BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

2.7 Valuation Principles Applied / Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

2.7.15 Statement of Cash Flows (cont’d)

Cash flows arising from investment activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided by
the investing activities (direot investments and financial investments) of the Cornpany.

Cash flows arising from flnancing activities represent the cash proceeds from the tinancing activities
of the Company and the repayments of these funds.

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of the cash on hand, the demand deposits and highly Iiquid other
short-term investments which their maturities are three months or Iess from the date of acquisition, are
readily convertible to cash and are not subject to a signiflcant risk of ehanges in value.

The translation difference that occurs due to translation from funetional curreney to presentation
curreney is shown as translation difference on cash flow statement.

2.7.16 Share Capital and Dividends

Common shares are elassifled as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity in the
period which they are approved and declared.

NOTE 3- SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The segments with similar economic characteristics have been combined into a single operating
segment considering the nature of the products and the production processes, methods to allocate the
products and the type of customers or to provide services.

NOTE 4- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The detail ofcash and cash equivalents as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 is as follows:

US Dollars
TRY
EURO
GB Pound
Other

31 December 3! December
2015 2014

Banks — demand deposits

The breakdown of demand deposits is presented below:

10.819 2.474

10.819 2.474

3! December 3 1 December
2015 2014

6.060 1.089
1.327 1.291

3.406 74

6 8
20 12

10.819 2.474
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(AmounLs am cxpresscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 5- FPiANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Derivative instruments for fair value hedge

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the details of cross currency swap transactions for fair
value hedge are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
Nominal Nominal

31 December 2015 Value Fair Value Value Fair Value

Cross curenoy / interest rate swap contracts
Buy US Dollars/SeB TRY Between 6-12 months 44.841 22.386 44841 13.916

Boy EURO/SelI TRY More ün 12 months 88.421 30528 88.421 69

133.262 52.914 133.262 14.015

Assets Liabilities

Nominal Nominal

31 December 2014 Value Fai Value Value Fair Value

Cross currencv swan contracts
Buy US Dollars/Sell TRY More than 12 months 50.066 18.630 50.066 9.126

Buy EURO/Sell TRY More than 12 months 117.734 30.813 117.734 3.253

167.800 49.443 167.800 12.379

Derivative instruments for cash flow hede

Cross currency and interest rate swap contracts for cash tlow hedges of interest rate and cunency risk of
borrowings.

The Company has flxing contracts for future interest and principle payments of floating interest rate
borrowings. The fair values of these contracts match the floating rate borrowings and was included in
other comprehensive income. The maturities ofihese transactions wili be completed in December 2017.

The terms and conditions of ılıose contracis match the temıs and conditions of the floating rate
borrowings. As a resuit, no hedge inetTectiveness arises requiring recognition through profit or loss and
recognition in other comprehensive income/expense.

In respect of these contracts which has a nominal value of TRY 139.607 thousand, for the purpose of
hedging cash flow risk, with related deferred tax etfect TRY (15.075) thousand was included in other
cornprehensıve income (31 December 2014: TRY (6.987) thousand).
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TÜ THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FÜR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts am expressed as Thousand Turk-ish Lira C’TRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 6- FINANCİAL LIABILITIES

As of the balance sheet dale, the details of the Company’s liabilities are as follows:

Short term financial Iiabili6es
Current portion of long term fınancial liabilitles
Total short term fınancial Iiabilities

Total long term fınancial Iiabihties

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

As of 31 December 2015, the breakdown of the
weighted average interest mtes is presented as fol

Weighted

Company’s Ioans
1 ows:

with their original curreney and their

As of3l December 2014, the breakdown of the
weighted average interest rates 15 presented as fol

Weighted

Company’s loans
Iows:

with their original currency and their

9.256 216.892

332.199 556.161
341.455 773.053

489.786 644.456

831.241 1.417.509

Type of Average Rate of Short Term hong Term
Interest Type Currency Interest (%) Portion Portion 31 December 2015

No interest TRY - 9.256 - 9.256
Fixed US Dolbrs 2,05 8.059 7.684 15.743
Fixed TRY 9.76 79.694 12.866 92.560
Floating US Dolbrs Lıbor±l,97 140.660 356.846 497.506
Floating EURO Euribor+0,33 88.558 97.832 186.390
Floating Japanese Yen JPY+022 15.228 14.558 29.786

341.455 489.786 831.241

Type of Average Rale of Short Term hong Tent
Interest Tvpe Currency Inlerest (%) Portion Ponion 31 December 2014

No interest TRY . 9.813 . 9.813
Fked US Dollars 127 213.635 12.216 225.851
FL’ed TRY 9.46 97.612 83.238 180.850
Floating US Dollars Libor+2,0I 349.485 364.209 713.694
Floathıg EURO Euribor+034 89.995 161.924 251.919
Floating Japanese Yen JPY+022 12.513 22.869 35.382

773.053 644.456 1.417.509
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statemenıs Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Nde 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Timosand Turkish Lira C’TRY Timosand”) unicss olhcnvise indicated.)

NOTE 6- FINANCİAL LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Tthe breakdown of the ban repayments with respect to their maturities as follows:

Within 1 year
Between 1-2 years
Between 2-3 years
Between 3-4 years
Between 4-5 years

NOTE 7- TRADE RECEWABLES AND PAYABLES

31 December 31 December
20142015

As of the balance sheet date. the details of the Company’s trade receivables are as follows:
31 December

Short term trade receivables
Trade receivables

Due from related parties (Note 27)
Discount on receivables (-)
Provision for doubtful İrade receivables (-)

2015

152.778

300.239
(3)

(7.294)

445.720

31 December
20! 4

141.231

398.015
(3)

(189)

539.054

The movement of the provision for short term doubtful trade receivables are as follows:

1 Januaıy— 1 Januaıy—

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Doubtful receivables collected (-)
Translation difference
Cbsing balance

31 December 2014

189

According to the market conditions and product types, a certain interest charge is applied for deferred
trade receivables and overdue interest is appbied for overdue trade receivables.

As the Company provides services and products to a large number of customers, collection risk is wideiy
distributed amongst these customers and there is no significant credit risk exposure. Therefore, the
Cornpanv does not provide for any Funher provision beyond the doubtful receivables provisions that the
Companv has already provided For in the financiai statements.

Other explanatory notes related to the eredit risk of the Company are disclosed in Note 28.

As of the balance sbıeet date, there is no significant amount of overdııe receivables within the trade
receivables.

341.455 773.053
420.150 366.324

49.112 248.712
13.683 29.420
6.841 -

831.241 1.417.509

31 December 2015

189

6.737
(59)

427
7.294 189
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(AmounLs are expressed as Tlıousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand’) unless othcnvise indicated.)

NOTE 7- TRADE RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

The Company provides provision according
follow ııp.

to the balances of alI unsecured receivables under legal

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Company’s trade payables are as follows:

Short term İrade payables

Trade payables
Due to related partles (Note 27)
Discount on İrade payables (-)

NOTE 8- OTHER RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of the balance sheet date, the detalls of the Company’s other receivables and payables are as follows:

Short İerm other receivables

Other due from related parties (Note 27)
Receivables from water system construction
Deposits and guarantees giyen

Long term other receivables

Receivables from Privatimtion Authority
Receivables from water system construction
Provision for receivables from Privatization Authority(-)

The movement of the provision for other doubtful receivables are as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Other doubtful receivables collected (-)
Translation differenee

____________________

Ciosing balance

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

217.350 164.684

25.61! 12.624
(1.049) (536)

241.912 176.772

31 December 3! December
2015 2014

751.026 1.014.183
1.763 3.527

108 110
752.897 1.017.820

31 December 31 December

2015 2014

67.397 62.403

14.036 22.837

(67.397) (62.403)

14.036 22.837

1 Januaıy—
31 December 2015

1 January—
31 December 2014

62.403 55.958
5.436 6.699
(482) -

40 (254)
67.397 62.403
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts are exprcssed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenvisc indicakd.)

NOTE 8- OTHER RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

Short term other payables
Taxes payable
Deposits and guarantees received
Dividend payables to shareholders
Other due to related parties (Note 27)

As of the balance sheet date. the detalis of the Company’s inventories are as follows:

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods
Spare parts
Goods in transit
Other invernories
Aliowance for impaimıent on inventories (-)

The movement of the allowance for impairment on inventories:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Provision released (-)
Translation dillerence
Closing balance

The Cornpany has provided an allowance for the impairment on the inventories of finished goods, work
in progress and raw materials within the scope of aging repods in the cases when their net realizable
valııes are Iower than their costs or for slow moving inventories. The provision released has been
recognized under cost of sales (Note 20).

3 1 December 31 December

NOTE 9- INVENTORIES

2015 2014
7.910 9.307
5.029 2.496

405 -

- 569
13.344 12.372

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

342.594 384.521
243.416 272.365
291.256 239.659
196.171 153.186
241.695 227.932

121.800 84.190
(44.817) (25.474)

1.392.115 1.336.379

1 January -
31 December 2015

1 January -
3! December20l4

25.474 12.145
12.154 11.579
(115) -
7.304 1.750

44.817 25.474
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — Sec Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
(Amounts are cxpresscd as TlıoLısand Turkish Lira C’TRY Tbousand) unlcss otlmnvisc indicated.)

NOTE 19- PREPAİD EXPENSES

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Company’s short İerm prepaid expenses are as follows:

31 December 3! December
2015 2014

Insurance expenses

Advances giyen to suppliers
Prepaid utility allowance to employees
Other prepaid expenses

__________________ __________________

As of the balance sheet date, the details of the Companv’s long term prepaid expenses are as follows:

Advances giyen for flxed assets
Insurance expenses

Other prepaid expenses

13.561 12.483
3.730 419
1.672 1.813
5.557 4.515

24.520 19.230

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

14.074 9.984
8.593 -

156 -

22.823 9.984
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(Convenience Translation into Engiish of Financial Statements OriginalIy lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkisb Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 11- PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUWMENT (cont’d)

The breakdown ofdepreciation expenses related to property, plant and equipment k as follows:

As of 31 December 2015, the Company has no collaterais or pledges on intangible assets
(31 December 2014: None).

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

282.418 212.771
1.803 1.208
7.962 6.394

292.183 220.373

Associated with cost of production
General administrative expenses
Marketing,sales and distribution expenses

NOTE 12- INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

Opening balance as of 1 January
Translation difference
Additions
Transfers from CIP
Closing balance as of3l December 2014

Accumulated amortintion

Opening balance as of 1 January
Translation difference

Charge for the period
Ciosing balance as of3l December 2014

Net book value as of3I December 2013

Net book value as of3l December 2014

Rights Total

163.330 163.330
41.599 41.599
4.896 4.896

471 471
210.296 210.296

(51.897) (51.897)

(13.567) (13.567)

(5.637) (5.637)
(71.101) (71.101)

111.433 111.433

139.195 139.195
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira CTRY Thousand”) unless othcnvisc indicated.)

NOTE 12— INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

Cost

Opening balance as of 1 January
Translation difference
Additions
Transfers from CIP
Ciosing balance as of3l December 2014

Accumulated amortization

Opening balance as of 1 January
Translation difference
Charge for the period
Ciosing bahnce as of3I December 2014

Net book value as of3l December 2013

Net book vaiue as of3l December 2014

Rights Total

145.416 145.416
12.872 12.872
3.974 3.974
1.068 1.068

163.330 163.330

(41.304) (41.304)
(3.972) (3.972)
(6.62?) (6.621)

(51.897) (51.897)

104.112 104.112

111.433 111.433

The breakdown of amortization expenses related to intangible assets is as follows:

Associated with cost of production

NOTE 13- GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND INCENTIVES

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

These grants and incentives can be used by alI companles. which meet the
requirernents and ıhose grants have no sectorai differences:

reiated legisiative

t incentives under the jurisdiction of the research and development law (100% corporate ta\
exemption ete.).

İ Cash incentives from Tübitak — Teydeb for cost of research and development,
1’ inward processing permission certificates and Social Security lnstitution incentives,
t Insurance premlum employershare incentive.

NOTE 14— EMPLOYEE BENEF[TS

The Company’s simit term payables for employee beneflts are as follows:

Due to personnel

Social security prerniums payable

31 December 31 December

5.637 6.621
5.637 6.621

2015 2014

37.637 24.290

9.034 9.852
46.671 34.142
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TÜ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts art expressed as Thousand Turkislı Lira (TRY Timosand”) unless otherwise indicated.)

NOTE 14— ENWLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

hong term provision of the emplayee termination benefıts of the Company is as follows:

3! December 31 December

Provisions for empbyee termination beneflts
Pravisians for seniority incentive premlum
Provision for unpaid vacations

2015 2014

172.350 174.097

12.547 11.068
20,488 19.113

205.385 204.278

Discount rate
Lnflation rate
Salaıy increase
Maximurn liability inerease

According ta the articles of Turkish Labor Law in force, there iş an obligation ta pay dıe legal
emplayee termination beneflts ta each employee whose employment contracts are ended properiy
entitling thern ta receive employee termination benefıts. Alsa, in accardance with the effective laws of
the Social Insurance Aa Na: 506 Na: 2422 on 6 March 1981 and Na: 4447 on 25 August 1999 and
with the arnended Article 60 af the related Act, it is obliged ta pay the employees their legal ernployee
termination beneflts, who are entitled ta terminate.

As af3l December 2015, the arnount payable consists of ane month’s salaıy limited ta a rnaximurn af
TRY 3.828,37 (31 December 2014: TRY 3.438,22). As of 1 Januaıy 2016, the employee termination
benefit has been updated ta a rnaxirnum of TRY 4.092,53.

The employee terminatian benefit legally is not subject ta any funding requirernent.

The ernplayee terrninatian benefıt has been calculated by estirnating the present value af the future
probable abligatian af the Campany arising from the retirement af emplayees. TAS 19 (“Ernplayee
Beneflts”) requires actuarial valuatian methods ta be develaped ta estirnate the Campany’s abligatian
under defined benefıt plans. The abligatian as af 31 Decernber 2015 has been calculated by an
independent acwan’. The actuarial assumptians used in the calculatian af the present value of the
future prabable abligatian are as follows:

3! December 2015 31 December 2014

10,70% 8,00%
7,75% 6,50%

real 1,50% real 1,50%
7.75% 6,50%

Discount rates are determined cansidering the expected duratian af the retirement abligations and the
currency in which the obligatians wiil be paid. in calculatians as af 31 December 2015, a flxed
discount rate is ıısed. Lang term infiatian estimates are made using an appraach cansistent with
discouııt rate estirnates and hong term infiatian rate tixed over years is used.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless otlıcnvisc indicaled.)

NOTE 14— ENWLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

The anticipated rate of resignation which do not result in the payment of employee beneflis is also
considered in the calculation. The anticipated rate of resiguation is assumed to be related with the past
experience, İherefore past experiences of employees are analyzed and considered in the calculation. in
the actuarial calculalion as of3l December 20l5. the anticipated rate ofresignation k considered to be
inversely propodional to the past experience. The anticipated rate of resignaiion k between 2%-0% for
the employees with past experienee between 0-15 years or over.

The movemeat of the provision for employee termination beneflts k as follows:

Onening balance
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial oss/(gain)
Termination beneflts paid (-)
Translation difference
Closing balance

Rate
Chage in employee benefıts Iiability

Rate
Chage in employee beneflts Iiability

According to the current labor agreement, ernployees completing their lOth,
years receive seniority incentive premlum payments.

The rnovement of the provision for senioritv incentive premlum is as follows:

OpeninQ babnce
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial Ioss/(gain)
Termination beneflts paid (-)
Translation difference
Ciosing balance

ISth and 2Oth seıwice

1 January - 1 Januaıy -
3! December 2015 3! December 2014

174.097 140.963
18.0M 8.332
13.688 13.194

(10.819) 33.755
(22.557) (21.293)

(123) (854)
172.350 174.097

The sensitivity anaiysis of the assumptions which was used for the calculation
employment termination beneFıts as of3 1 December 2015 as follows:

Sensitivity level
Discount rate

of provision for

1% increase 1% decrease
(15.898) 18.505

Infiation rate
1% increase

17.195
1% decrease

(11.490)

1 Januan’ - 1 January -
3! December 2015 3! December 2014

11.068 7.472
1.619 1,046
1.017 831

(1.137) 1.859
(95) (76)

75 (64)
12.547 11.068
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(AmounLs am cxpresscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 14— ENWLOYEE BENEFITS (cont’d)

The movement of the provision for unused vacation is as follows:

Opening balance
Provision for the period
Vacation paid during the period 1-)
Provisions released (-)
Translation difference
Ciosing balance

1 Januaıy - 1 January -
31 December2ol5 31 December 2014

19.113 18.144
15.144 13.054

(1.929) (2.872)
(11.822) (8.872)

(18) (341)
20.488 19.113

NOTE 15- PROVISİONS

The Company’s short term provisions are as follows:

Provision for Iawsuits
Penalty provision for employment shortage of disabled persons

3 1 December 3 1 December
2015 2014

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, Iawsuits filed by and against the Company are as
foliows:

Lawsuits filed by the Company
Provision for hwsufts filed by the Company

31 December
2015

146.824
116

31 December
2014

123.853
189

The provisions for the lawsuits fıled by the Cornpany represents the doubtftıl tmde receivables.

31 December
2015

3 1 December
2014

Lawsııits tiled against the Company 15.458
Provision for Iawsııits filed against the Company 21.196

21.196 17.007
3.623 3.040

24.819 20.047

9.990
17,007
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — Sec Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE F[NANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounls are cxprcsscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unlcss othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 16- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The guarantees received by the Company are as follows:

31 December 3! December
2015 2014

The Collaterais, Pledges and Mortgages (CPM) giyen by the Company are as follows:

A. Total CPM giyen for the Companys own legal entity
B. Total CPM giyen in favour of subsidiaries
consolidated on line-by-line basis -

C. Total CPM giyen in favour of other
3rd parties for ordinary
trading operations -

D. Other CPM giyen -

1. Total CPM giyen in favour of parent entfty -

ii. Total CPM giyen in favour of other Group
companies out of the scope of clause B and C -

iii. Total CPM giyen in favour of other 3rd parties out
of the scope of clause C

_________________ _________________

As of 31 December 2015, the ratio of the other CPM giyen by the Company to
0% (31 December 2014: 0%).

The breakdown of the Company’s collaterais giyen regarding service purchases according to their
TRY equivalents of foreign currency is as follows:

31 December 31 December

TRY
EU RO

2015 2014

53.307 23.608
7.494 5.977

60.80! 29.585

Letters of guarantees received 251.494 209.440
251.494 209.440

31 December 31 December
2015

60.80!

2014

29.585

60.80! 29.585

shareholders equity is
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TÜ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FÜR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expresscd as Thousand Turk-ish Lira (‘TRY Thousand”) unless otlıenvise indicated.)

NOTE 17- OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As of the balance sheet date, the detalis of the Company’s otlıer assets and liabilitles are as follows:

Other current assets

Üther VAT receivable
Prepaid taxes and funds
Other current assets

As of the balance sheet dale, the details of the Company’s short term defered revenue are as follows:

Advances received

31 December
2015

21.825
21.825

3l December
2014

22.073
22.073

NOTE 19- EQUITY

As of the balance sheet date, the capital structure is as follows:

Shareholders

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş.

Shares distributed to shareholders from İskendenm Demir
ve Çelik A.Ş. Çalışanları Yardımlaşma Sandığı Vakfı

Historical Capital
Effect of infiation
Restated capital

31 December 31 December

(%) 2015 (%) 2014

95.07 2.756.978 95,07 2.756.978

143.022 4,93 143.022

2.900.000
164

2.900.164

2.900.000
164

2.900.164

31 December 3! December

Üther currenr liabilities

VAT payable
Other current liabilities

NOTE 18- DEFERRED REVENUE

2015 2014

3.065 5.832
699 656

43 97
3.807 6.565

31 December 31 December
2015 2014

15.754 39.513
4.102 3.211

19.856 42.724

4,93
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ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are exprcssed as Thousand TurLish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unlcss othenyise indicaled.)

NOTE 19— EQUITY (cont’d)

Other equity items
31 December

2015

(12.060)
2.117.376

(51.765)
165.142

165.112
901.013

3.119.706

31 December
2014

(5.754)
768.727

(60.420)
38.913

38.913
900.231

1.641.697

Sales Revenue
Dornestic sales
Export sales
Other revenues (t)

Sales retums (-)

____________________ ___________________

Cost of oods sold (-)

__________________ __________________

Gross prolit

__________________ __________________

()The total amount of by product exports in other revenues k TRY 67.473 thoıısand (31 December
2014: TRY 117.640 thousand).

Financial risk hedging reserve
Foreign currency hedging reserve
Acturaial (loss) / gam fund
Restricted reserves assorted from profit

- Legal reserves
Retained Eamings

Aceording to the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”), legal reserves spiit up as the first legal reserves
and the second legal reserves. According to the Turkish Commercial Code 5% of the profit shall be
allocated as the first legal reserves, up to 20% of the paid! issued capital. After deducting dividends
amounting to 5% of the paid/issued capital from the part decided to be allocated; ten percent of the
remaining balance shall be appropriated to second legal reserves. Also according to the “TCC” 5% of
the net profit for the period after taxation 15 estimated to be allocated as legal reserves up until
reaching 50% of the paid/issued capital.

NOTE 20- SALES AND COST OF SALES

1 January - 1 January -
31 December20ls 31 December 2014

5.020.279 5.428.472
729.046 648.996
172.220 192.379
(5.160) (507)

5.916.385 6.269.340

(5.000.763) (4.919.371)

915.622 1.349.969
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicated,)

NOTE 20- SALES AND COST OF SALES (cont’d)

The breakdown of cost of goods sales for the periods l January —31 December 2015
31 December 2014 isas follows:

l January -
31 December 2015

and 1 January —

1 January
31 December 2014

Raw material usage
Personnel costs
Energy costs
Depreciation and amortizntion expenses
Factoıy overheads
Other cost of goods sold

(3.758.559)
(457.886)
(233.813)
(280.125)
(126.785)
(70.385)
(11.605)
(48.584)
(12.154)

115

(3.764.028)
(399.816)
(213.823)

(216.761)
(104.762)

(111.851)

(66.378)
(27.771)
(11.579)

(t) Due to the planned! unplanned halt production of plant of the Company’s, operations were
suspended temporarlly in the current period. Asa result of this, unallocated overheads, TRY (11.605)
thousand, has been accounted directly under cost of goods sold (3! December 2014: TRY 66.378
thousand).

NOTE 21 - RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES, MARKETING, SALES AND
DISTRIBUTİON EXPENSES, GENERAL ADMINJSTRATIVE EXPENSES

The breakdown of operational expenses according to their nature for the periods 1 January — 31
December 2015 and 1 Januaıy —31 December 2014 is as follows:

Marketing, sales and distribution expenses (-)
General administrative expenses (-)
Research and development expenses (-)

1 January - 1 January -

Non-operating costs (t)

Freight costs for sales delivered to customers
lnventory write-downs within the period (Note 9)
Reversal of inventory write-downs (Note 9)
Other (982) (2.602)

(5.000.763) (4.919.371)

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

(59.360) (57.317)
(110.198) (77.440)

(122) (811)
(169.680) (135.568)
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ISKENDERUN DEMiR VE ÇELIK A.Ş.

Personnel expense (-)
Depreciation and amortintion(-)
Tax,duty and charges (-)
Service expenses (-)

Personnel expenses (-)
Depreciation and amortintion (-)
Provision for doubtful receivables (-)
Tax, duty and charges (-)
Service expenses (-)

(21.963) (22.292)
(7.962) (6.394)

(469) (11.586)
(28.966) (17.045)
(59.360) (57.317)

December 2015 and

1 January -

_______________

31 December 2014
(34.722)
(1.208)
(6.699)
(2.263)

(32.548)

(77.440)

The breakdown of researeh and development expenses for the periods 1 Januaıy — 31 December 2015
and 1 January —31 December 2014 is as follows:

(122) (811)

NOTE 23- OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSES)

The breakdown of other operating income for the periods 1 Januaıy — 31 December 2015 and 1
Janııary — 3 1 December 2014 is as follows:

1 January -

31 December 2015

1 January -

31 December 2014
Other operating income

Interest income from on credit sales
Discount income

Provisions released

Service income

Maintenance repair and rent income
lndemnity and penalty detention income

Insurance indemnity income

Gam on sale of tangible assets

Other income and gains

3.708

7.052

4.913

2.295

238
86 7

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxprcsscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (‘TRY Thousand’) unlcss othençise indicaled.)

NOTE 22- OPERATING EXPENSES ACCORDING TO THEIR NATURE

The breakdown of marketing, sales and distribution expenses according to their nature for the periods
1 January—31 December2ol5 and 1 Januaıy—31 December2ol4 is as follows:

1 January -

31 December 2015
1 January -

31 December 2014

The breakdown of general administrative expenses for the periods 1 January — 31
1 January —31 December 2014 is as foliows:

1 January -
31 December 2015

(39.758)

(1.803)
(11.632)

(5.268)
(51.737)

(110.198)

Service expenses (-)

1 January -
31 December 2015

(122)

1 January -

31 December 2014
(811)

19.877

4. 1 80

14.355

10.227

9.539

13.365

11.081

1.954

12.511

3.975 5.927
77.093 48.197
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TÜ THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amoun(s are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira CTRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 23— OTHER OPERATING INCOME/(EXPENSES) (cont’d)

The breakdown of other operating expenses for the periods
January —3! December 2014 is as follows:

1 Januaıy — 3! December 20 15 and 1

Other operatinı expenses (-)
Provisions expenses
Donation expenses
Discount expenses
Port facilfty pre-licence expenses
Lawsuit compensation expenses
Penalty expenses
Capital Markets Board registration expenses

Loss on disposal of tangible assets
lmpairment of properiy, plant and equipment (Note Il)
Other expenses and losses

1 January
31 December 2015

(15.210)
(1.455)

(15.986)
(7.235)
(1.632)
(2.09!)

(66)

(4.317)
(47.992)

1 January -
31 December 2014

(2.149)
(8.663)
(3.037)
(4.906)
(1.800)
(3.01!)
(5.588)

(3.093)
(18.555)

(4.156)
(54.958)

NOTE 24- FINANCİAL INCOME

The breakdown of fınancial income for the periods 1 Januaıy—31 December 2015
December 2014 is as fol!ows:

Financial income

Inlerest income on bank deposiis
Foreign exchange gah (net)
!nterest income on related pariy

The breakdown of financial expenses for the periods 1 Januaıy — 31 December 201 5
3! December 2014 is as follows:

and 1 Januaıy—31

and 1 Januaıy —

Financial expenses ()

Interest expenses on fmancial Iiabi!ities
Interest cost of empbyee beneflıs

Interest expense on rehted party
Guarantee expense
Forehm exchange Ioss from deferred tax base
Fair va!ue difterences of derivative fınancial instruments(net)

(56.000) (85.780)
(14.705) (14,025)

(14.038) (22.912)
(6.331) (8.18!)

(213.058) (82.297)
(8.548) (1.903)

(312.680) (215,098)

!January
3! December 2015 31

!January
December 2014

NOTE 25— FINANCİAL EXPENSES

3 10
216.707 109.687
41.462 20.286

258.172 129.983

January
3! December 2015

1 ianuary
3! December 2014
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Aıııounls are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira C’TRY Thousand’) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 26- TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
1 January- 1 Ocak-

31 December 2015 31 Aralık2014
Taxation:
Current corporate tax expense
Deferred tax (income) / expense

Corporate tax

206.438 72.461
(61.146) 53.053
145.292 125.514

The Company is subject to corporation tax applicable in Turkey.

Income withholding tax

Investment allowance application

years.

Corporate fax k applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the sfatutoıy
accounting profif by adding non-deductible expenses, and by deducting dividends received from
resident companies, other exempt income and investmenf incentives utilized.

The effective corporate tax rate in Turkey is 20% for the year ended in 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: 20%).

Advance fax refums are filed on a quarferly basis in Turkey. The femporaıy tax of 2015 has been
calculated over the corporafe eamings using fhe rate 20%, during the femporaıy faxafion period (2014:
20%).

Losses can be carried forward fo offset the future faxable income for tıp to maximum 5 years.
However, losses cannot be can-ied back to offset the proflfs of the previous periods, retrospectively.

in Turkey, a defınite and distinct reconciliafion procedure for fax assessment does not exist.
Companies ille their fax returns between lApril -25 April following the ciosing period of the related
year’s accounts. Tax retums and relafed accounting records may be examined and revised within five
years.

In addition to corporate faxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes on
dividends disfributed, except for the dividends disfribufed fo fully fledged taxpayer companies
receiving and deciaring these dividends and fo Turkish branches of foreign companies. This rate was
changed to 15% as of 22 July 2006 by the decision of the Council of Ministers, numbered
2006/10731. Undistribuİed dividends incorporafed in share capital are not subject to the income
wifhholding taxes.

19,8% withholding tax must be applied to fhe investment allowances relating fo investment incentive
certifıcates obtained prior to 24 April 2003. lnvestment disbursements without any investmenf
incentive cerfifıcate afler this date which are directly related to production facilities of the cornpany
can be deducfed by 40% from fhe taxabie income. The investrnents without investment incentive
certiflcates do not qualif>’ for tax allowance.

With fhe decision numbered 2006/95, which was taken during the meeting of the Constitutional Court
on 15 October 2009, the phrase “only related to the years 2006, 2007 and 2008 which was a part
of the Ternporary Arficle 69 of the Income Tax Law was cancelled and the canceilation becarne
effective from the date the decision has been published in the Offıcial Gazerte on 8 January 2010.
According to the decision, the investment incentive amount outstanding that cannof be deducted frorn
2008 taxable income previously wili be deducted from taxable income of the sııbseqııent profıtable
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iSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxpressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othcnvise indicaled.)

NOTE 26— TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

Investment allowance application (cont’d)

Regarding the cancellation decision taken by the Constitutional Court, an amendment was made in the
69°’ article in Income Tax Regulation using the regıılation numbered 6009 and dated 23 JuIy 2010.
Consequently, in compiiance with the cancellation decision of the Constitutional Court, the year
limitation has been abolished and investment allowance has been limited to 25% of the profit. As
limitation of investment allowance to 25% of the profit by regulation numbered 6009 is found to be
contraıy to Iaw by the Consiitutional Court. the Constitutional Court cancelled the regulation and
stayed an execution. Corporate tax ratio of 30% in the previous regulation for the ones who benefit
from investment allowance has been decreased to the effective corporate tax with the amendment
made (2014: 20%).

Defened tax

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and Iiabilities based upon the temporaiy differences
arising between its taxable srarutory financial statements and its financial statements prepared in
accordance with the CMB’s CommuniquĞ on Accounting Standards. These difterences usualiy result
in the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for the CMB regulations and
tax purposes and are explained below.

Tax mte used in the calculation of deferred tax assets and Iiabilities (excluding Iand) are 20% ili Turkey
(31 December 2014: 20%). Deferred tıx related with the tempomıy diWerences arising from land parceis
is calculated with the tax rate of 5% (December 2014: 5%).

Deferred tax assets:
Provisions for empbvee benefıts

Investment hıcentive
Provision for Iawsuits
Discount of receivabks
Provision for other doubtful receivables
Provision for unpaid vacations
Other

____________________________________

Deferred iax llabilities:
Tangible and iniangıble fıxed asseis
Fair values of the derivative tinancial instruments
Amortized cost adjustment on loans
lnventories
Other

_______________________________________

The temporary differences disclosed above besides the deferred tax asset and Iiabilities. have been
prepared on the basis of the gross values and show the net deferred tax position.

3! December 31 December
2015 2014

36.979 37.033

10.533 -

4.239 3.401
5.008 3.761

13.479 12.481
4.098 3.822
9.708 2.480

84.044 62,978

(692.322) (4)4.403)

(4.765) (6.015)
(2.343) (4.535)

(6.791) (4.373)

(1.263) <531)
(707.484) (429.857)

(623.440) (366.879)Presentation of deferred tax assets/(Ibbilities) net:
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ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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NOTE 26— TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

The breakdown ofdeferred tax asset / (hiability) k as fohlows:

Reconciliation of tax provision

__________________________________

Profit before tax

Statutory tax rate

Cakulated tax according to eftective tax rate

Reconciihtion between the tax provision and calcubted tax:

- Non-deductible expenses
- ElTect ofcurrency transbtion to non taxable assets (*)

- lnvestment incentives
- E[Yect of non-mxable adjustmenis

Tax expense in reported in the consolidate statement of income

(*) The difference between the Company’s functional currency and the cunency in basis oftax base
causes to translation difference.

1 January -

31 December 2015Deferred tax asset’(liabilitv) movements:

Opening balance
Deferred tax expense/(income)
The amount in comprehensive income/(expense)
Transbtion difTerence
Ciosing babnce

Reconciliation of tax provision is as follows:

1 Januarv -

December 201431

(366.879) (211.133)
61.146 (53.053)

(587) 5.888
(317.120) (108.581)
(623.440) (366.879)

1 ianuaıy - 1 ianuary -

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

720.535 1.122.525

20% 20%

144.107 224.505

555 2.515

11.163 (9.484)
(10.533) -

- (92.022)

145.292 125.534
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand’) unless othenvise indicated.)

NOTE 26- TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

As of 1 January — 31 December 2015 and 1 Januaıy — 31 December 2014, the details of the tax
gains/(Iosses) of the other comprehensive income/(expense) are as foilows:

Other comprehensive income/(Ioss) in the current period
Change in actuarial (Ioss)/gain
Change in cash flow hedging reserves

Change in foreign currency translation reserves

Other comprehensive income/floss) in the eurrent period
Clıange in aetuarial (Ioss)/gain
Change in cash flow hedging reserves
Change in foreign currency translation reserves

NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

1 January-31 December 2015
Amount Tax Income/ Amount

Before Tax (Expense) AfterTax
10.819 (2.164) 8.655

(7.883) 1.577 (6.306)

1.348.649 - 1.348.649
1.351.585 (587) 1.350.998

1 January-31 December 2014
Amount Tax Income/ Arnount

Before Tax (Expense) After Tax
(33.755) 6.751 (27.004)

4.314 (863) 3.451
419.311 - 419.311
389.870 5.888 395.758

The immediate parent and ultimate controlling parties of the Company
Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. and Ordu Yardımlaşma Kurumu respectively (Note 1).

are Ereğli Demir ve Çelik

The details of transactions between the Company and other related paıties are disclosed below:

31 December
2015

31 December
2014

Due from related parties (short term)

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş.
>

Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San, ve Tie. A.Ş.
(3)

Adana Çırnento Sanayı T.A.Ş.
Aslan Çimento A.Ş.

(3)

Immediate parent company
(2) Subsidiaries of the immediate parent company
(3) Subsidiaries of the ultimaİe company

277.578

10.930

387.465

5.734

Erdemir Asia Pacific PTE LTD
(2)

Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.
(3)

Oyak Pazarlama Hizmet ve Turizm A.Ş.
(3)

Oyak Savunma ve Güvenlik Sistemleri A.Ş.t3

Other

6.070 4.071

168 539

5.243 -

98 65

39 103
54 31
59 7

300.239 398.015
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.
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NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont’d)

The details of non-trade transactions between the Company and other related parties are disclosed
beiow:

Due from related parties (short term)

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş.
(1)

31 December
2015

751.026
751.026

3! December
2014

1.014.183
1.014.183

Other receivables from related parties are consisting of cash receivables within the scope of central
cash planning.

The details oftransactions between the Company and other related parties are diselosed below:

Erdemir Madencilik San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
(2)

Oyak Pazarlama Hizmet ve Turizm A.Ş.
(3)

Erdemir Asia Pacific PTE LTD -

Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.
(3)

(3)
OYAK Savunma ve Guvenlık Sistemleri A.Ş.
Erenco Erdemir Müh. Yön. ve Dan. Hiz. A.Ş.

(2)

(3)
Omsan Denrec ilik A.Ş.
Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş.

(2)

Trade payables to related parties mainiy arise from purchased service transactions.

Dııe to related parties (short term)

Erdemir Madencilik San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
(2)

31 December
2015

31 December
2014

569
569

Other receivables and payables from related parties are consisting of cash receivables and payables
within the scope of central cash planning.

0) Immediate parent company
(2) Subsidiaries of the immediate parent company
0) Subsidiaries of the ultimate company

Due to related parties (short term)
3 1 December 3 1 December

2015

5.051
2.242
5.214
1.539
1.498
7.767
1.436

715
149

25.611

2014

3.490
1.561

1.048
1.805
2.358
1.632

722
8

12.624
Other

__________________ __________________

Erdemir’s personnel, data system infrastructure and marketing management system are used by The
Company for selling fiat products to third parties. Fiat products which are produced in İsdemir,
directly selling over Erdemir and Erdemir takes these inventories as a “Trade goods”. Erdemir sells
such products through their buying price and date, without adding any profit. Accordingly, in the
financial statements, balances of trade receivables and other receivables are arisen from centralized
selling.
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İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.
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NOTE 27- RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont’d)

1 January -

31 December 2015

1 January -

31 December 2014

Major sales to related parties

Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. °

Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
(2)

Adana Çimento Sanayi T.A.Ş.
(.5)

Erdemir Asia Pacific PTE LTD <2)

Erdemir Madencilik San. ve Tic. A.Ş.
(2>

Aslan Çimento A.Ş.
(3)

Erenco Erdemir Müh. Yön. ve Dan. Hiz. A.Ş.
<2>

Other

Major purchases from related parties

Erdemir Madencilik San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
(2)

Erdemir Asla Pacific PTE LTD
Ereğli Demir ve Çelik Fabrikaları T.A.Ş. (1)

Oyak Pazarlama Hintet ve Turi A.Ş.
(3)

(3)Omsan Denızcıhk A.Ş.
Oyak Savunma ve Güvenlik Sistemleri A.Ş.

(3)

Omsan Lojistik A.Ş.
<>

Erdemir Çelik Servis Merkezi San. ve Tie. A.Ş.
(2)

Erdemir Milli. Yön, ve Dan. Hiz. A.Ş. -

Oyak Teknoloji Bilişim ve Kart Hizmetleri A.Ş. (3)
Other

3.585.249 4.252.604

2.586 800
20.700 19.162

50.636 -

47 38

2.652
215

1.925
4.277.396

Immediate parent eompan
(2) Subsidiaries of the immediate parent company

Subsidiaries of the ultimate compan

The terms and oolicies applied to the transactions witli related parties:

The period end balances are secured and their collections wiil be done in cash. Other receivables from
related partles balances are non-secured, interest free and their collections wilI be done in cash. As of
3! December 2015, the Company provides no provision for the receivables from related parties (31
December 2014: None).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the total compensation consisting of short term benefits suchı
as salaries, bonuses and other beneflts of the key management of the Company is TRY 4.933
thousand (3! December 2014: TRY 4.208 İhousand).

1.209

315
3.272

3.664,014

1 Januan - 1 January -

31 December 2015 3! December 2014

355.478 355.830
77.459 -

70.785 77.809
22.741 12.053

15.230 45.732
16.805 15.143

11.811 10.297
8.028 5.009

10.043 15.198
- 970

3.281 1.530

591.661 539.571
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NOTE 28 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
İN5TRUMENT5

Additional information about financial instruments

(a) Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital through the optimization of the debt and the equity balance that
minimizes the fınancial risk.

Through the forecasts regularly prepared by the Company, the future capital amount, debt to equity
ratio and similar ratios are forecasted and required precautions are taken to strengthen the capital.

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt which includes the fınancial liabilities disclosed
in Note 6, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable tü equity holders of the parent company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Note 19.

The Company’s Board of Directors analyzes the capital structure in regular meetings. During these
analyses, the Board of Directors also evaluates the risks associated with each class ofcapital together
with the cost of capital. The Company, by considering the decisions of the Board of Directors, aims tü

balance its overail capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy
backs as welI as the issue of new debt or the redemption ofexisting debt.

As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 the net debtlequity ratio is as follows:

31 December 31 December
Note 2015 2014

Total financial liabilities 6 831.241 1.417.509
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 4 10.819 2.474
Net debt 820.422 1.415.035
Total adjusted equity (*) 6.658.938 5.605.046
Total resources 7.479.360 7.020.081
Net debdTotal adjusted equity ratio 12% 25%

Distribution of net debdTotal adjusted equity 11/89 20/80

(t) Total adjusted equity is calculated by subtracting cash flow hedging reserves and actuarial (loss)/gain
fund.

(b) Significant accounting policies

The Company’s accounting policies related to the fınancial instruments are disclosed in Note 2
“Summaıy of Signiflcant Accounting Policies, 2.7.7 Financial Instruments”.

(e) Market risk

The Company is exposed primarily to the financial risks of ehanges in foreign exchange rates and
interest rates. The Company utilizes the following financial insiruments to manage the risks
associated with the Foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Also, the Company follows price
ehanges and market conditions regulariy and takes action in pricing instantaneously.

The Company prefers floating interest rates for long term borrowings. To hedge against the interest
risk the Company uses interest swap agreements for some of its borrowings.

in the current period, there is no significant change in the Company’s exposure to the market risks or
the manner which it manages and measııres risk when compared to the previous year.

56



(C
on

ve
ni

en
ce

T
ra

ns
la

ti
on

in
to

E
ng

li
sh

of
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

St
at

em
en

ts
O

ri
gi

na
liy

ls
su

ed
in

T
ur

ki
sh

—
Se

e
N

ot
e

32
)

iS
K

E
N

D
E

R
U

N
D

E
M

İR
V

E
Ç

E
L

İK
A

.Ş
.

N
O

T
E

S
T

O
T

H
E

F
IN

A
N

C
İA

L
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
F

O
R

T
H

E
Y

E
A

R
E

N
D

E
D

31
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
20

15

(A
m

ou
nt

s
ar

e
ex

pr
es

se
d

as
T

ho
us

aı
ıd

T
ur

ki
sh

L
ir

a
(‘

T
R

Y
T

ho
us

an
d”

)
un

le
ss

ot
he

nv
is

e
in

di
ca

te
d.

)

N
O

T
E

2
8

-
N

A
T

U
R

E
A

N
D

L
E

V
E

L
O

F
R

IS
K

S
D

E
R

IY
E

D
F

R
O

M
F

IN
A

N
C

İA
L

IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
S

(c
oı

ıt
’d

)

A
dd

it
io

na
l

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

ab
ou

t
fi

na
nc

ia
l

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

(c
on

t’
d)

(d
)

C
re

d
it

ri
sk

m
an

ag
eı

n
en

t

T
ra

de
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s
in

cl
ud

e
a

la
rg

e
nu

m
be

r
o

f
cu

st
om

er
s

fr
om

va
ri

ou
s

in
du

st
ri

es
an

d
re

gi
on

s.
T

he
re

is
no

ri
sk

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n
on

a
sp

ec
if

ic
cu

st
om

er
or

a
C

om
pa

ny
of

cu
st

om
er

s.
T

he
m

aj
or

it
y

İr
ad

e
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s
ar

e
as

su
re

d
by

ba
nk

Ie
ue

rs
of

gu
ar

an
te

e
an

di
or

er
ed

it
lir

ni
ts

.
T

he
er

ed
it

re
vi

ew
s

ar
e

pe
rf

or
m

ed
co

nt
in

uo
us

ly
ov

er
th

e
ac

co
un

ts
re

ce
iv

ab
le

ba
la

nc
e

of
th

e
eu

st
om

er
s.

T
he

C
om

pa
ny

do
es

no
t

ha
ve

a
si

gn
if

lc
an

t
cr

ed
it

ri
sk

ar
is

in
g

fr
om

an
y

cu
st

om
er

.

C
re

di
t

ri
sk

of
fın

an
ci

aL
in

st
ru

rn
en

ts
R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
D

er
iv

at
iv

e
B

an
k

F
in

an
ci

al
T

ra
de

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

O
th

er
R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
D

ep
os

it
s

ln
st

ru
m

en
ts

31
D

e
c
e
n

ıb
e
r2

O
l5

R
el

at
ed

P
ar

ty
O

th
er

P
ar

ty
R

el
at

ed
P

ar
ty

O
th

er
P

ar
ty

M
ax

im
um

cr
ed

it
ri

sk
ex

po
su

re
as

o
f

ba
la

nc
e

sh
ee

t
da

le
(*

)
(A

±
B

+
C

±
D

±
E

)
30

0.
23

9
14

5.
48

1
75

1.
02

6
15

.9
07

10
.8

19
63

.0
96

-
S

ec
u
re

d
pa

rt
o

f
th

e
m

ax
im

um
cr

ed
ft

ri
sk

ex
po

su
re

vi
a

co
ll

at
er

al
et

c.
28

8.
79

9
13

8.
39

6
75

1.
02

6
-

A
.N

et
bo

ok
va

lu
e

o
f

th
e

fı
na

nc
ia

l
as

se
ts

ih
at

ar
e

ne
it

he
r

ov
er

du
e

no
r

ir
np

af
re

d
30

0.
23

9
14

5.
48

1
75

1.
02

6
15

.9
07

10
.8

19
63

.0
96

8
.

C
ar

ry
in

g
aı

no
un

t
o

f
fı

na
nc

ia
l

as
se

ts
Ih

at
ar

e
re

ne
go

ti
at

ed
,

ot
he

rw
is

e
cb

ss
if

le
d

as
ov

er
du

e
or

im
pa

fr
ed

-
-

-
-

C
.

N
et

bo
ok

va
lu

e
o

f
fı

na
nc

ia
l

as
se

ts
th

at
ar

e
ov

er
du

e
bu

t
no

t
im

pa
ir

ed
-

-
-

-

-
se

cu
re

d
p
an

vi
a

co
ll

at
er

al
et

c.
-

-
-

-

D
.

N
et

bo
ok

va
lu

e
o

f
im

pa
ir

ed
fm

an
ci

al
as

se
ts

-
-

-
-

-
O

v
er

d
u
e

(g
ro

ss
ca

rr
yi

ng
aı

no
un

t)
-

7.
29

4
-

67
.3

97
-

1r
np

ai
m

en
t

(-
)

-
(7

.2
94

)
-

(6
7.

39
7)

-
S

ec
u
re

d
p
an

vi
a

co
li

at
er

al
et

c.
-

-
-

N
ot

ov
er

du
e

(g
ro

ss
ca

rr
yi

ng
am

ou
nt

)
-

-

-
Ir

np
ai

rr
ne

nt
(-

)
-

-
-

S
ec

u
re

d
p
an

vi
a

co
li

at
er

al
et

c.
-

-
E

.
O

ff
-b

al
an

ce
sh

ee
t

fı
na

nc
ia

l
as

se
ts

ex
po

se
d

to
cr

ed
it

ri
sk

-
-

(t
)T

Iı
e

fa
ct

or
s

th
at

in
cr

ea
se

er
ed

ib
il

ii
y

su
ch

as
gu

ar
an

te
es

re
ce

iv
ed

ar
e

no
t

ta
ke

n
in

to
ac

co
un

t
in

de
te

rm
in

at
io

n
o
f

am
ou

nt
.

57



(C
on

ve
ni

en
ce

T
ra

ns
la

ti
on

in
to

E
ng

lis
h

of
Fi

na
nc

ia
l

St
at

er
ne

nt
s

O
ri

gi
na

liy
ls

su
ed

in
T

ur
ki

sh
—

Se
e

N
ot

e
32

)

iS
K

E
N

D
E

R
U

N
D

E
M

İR
V

E
Ç

E
L

İK
A

.Ş
.

N
O

T
E

S
T

Ü
T

H
E

F
[N

A
N

C
IA

L
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

S
F

O
R

T
H

E
Y

E
A

R
E

N
D

E
D

31
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
20

15

(A
rn

ou
nt

s
ar

e
ex

pr
cs

se
d

as
T

lıo
us

aı
ıd

üı
rk

ıs
h

L
ir

a
(T

R
Y

T
iı

ou
sa

nd
’)

un
ie

ss
ol

hc
nv

is
c

in
di

ca
tc

d.
)

N
O

T
E

2
8

-
N

A
T

U
R

E
A

N
D

L
E

V
E

L
O

F
R

IS
K

S
D

E
R

IV
E

D
F

R
O

M
F

IN
A

N
C

İA
L

IN
S

T
R

U
M

E
N

T
S

(c
o

n
t’

d
)

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
ab

o
u

t
fi

n
an

ci
al

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

(c
o

n
t’

d
)

(d
)

C
re

di
t

ri
sk

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

(c
on

t’
d)

C
re

di
t

ri
sk

o
f

fa
sa

nc
ia

l
in

st
ru

rn
en

ts
R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
D

er
iv

at
iv

e
B

an
k

F
üı

an
ci

al
T

ra
de

R
ec

ei
va

bl
es

O
th

er
R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
D

ep
os

it
s

In
st

rw
ne

nt
s

31
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r2

O
l1

R
el

at
ed

P
ar

ty
O

th
er

P
ar

ty
R

el
at

ed
P

ar
ty

O
th

er
P

ar
ly

M
ax

im
m

n
cr

ed
it

ri
sk

ex
po

su
re

as
o

f
b
ab

u
ce

sh
ee

t
da

le
(9

(A
±

B
+

C
+

D
+

E
)

39
8.

01
5

14
1.

03
9

1.
01

4A
83

26
.4

74
2.

47
4

53
.9

56
-

S
ec

u
re

d
p
an

o
fı

h
e

rn
ax

ir
nu

rn
cr

ed
it

ri
sk

ex
po

su
re

vi
a

co
lk

te
ra

l
et

c.
38

7.
46

5
12

6.
39

1
1.

01
4.

18
3

-

A
.N

et
bo

ok
va

lu
e

o
f

th
e

fr
na

nc
ia

l
as

se
is

Ih
at

ar
e

ne
ft

he
r

ov
er

du
e

no
r

im
pa

ir
ed

39
8.

01
5

14
1.

03
9

1.
01

4.
18

3
26

.4
74

2,
47

4
53

.9
56

E
.

C
an

y
in

g
am

ou
nı

o
f

fr
na

nc
ia

l
as

se
ts

th
at

ar
e

re
ne

go
ti

al
ed

,
ot

he
nv

is
e

ci
as

si
fl

ed
as

ov
er

du
e

or
ün

pa
ir

ed
-

-
-

-

C
.

N
et

bo
ok

va
lu

e
o

f
fi

na
nc

ia
l

as
se

ts
th

at
ar

e
ov

er
du

e
bu

t
no

t
im

pa
fr

ed
-

-
-

-

-
se

cu
re

d
p
an

vi
a

co
ll

at
er

al
et

c.
-

-
-

-
D

.
N

et
bo

ok
va

lu
e

o
f

im
pa

ir
ed

fu
rn

nc
ia

l a
ss

et
s

-
-

-
-

-
O

ve
rd

ue
(g

ro
ss

ca
n

y
in

g
ar

no
un

fl
-

18
9

-
62

.4
03

-
Im

pa
fr

m
en

t
(-

)
-

(1
89

)
-

(6
2.

40
3)

-
S

ec
u
re

d
p
an

vi
a

co
ll

at
er

al
et

c.
-

-
-

-
N

ot
ov

er
du

e
(g

ro
ss

ca
rr

yi
ng

am
ou

nt
)

-
-

-

-
Ir

np
ai

rm
en

t
(-

)
-

-
-

-
S

ec
u
re

d
pa

rt
vi

a
co

ll
at

er
al

et
c.

-
-

-
E

.
O

ff
-b

al
an

ce
sh

ee
t

fı
na

nc
ia

l
as

se
ts

ex
po

se
d

to
cr

ed
it

ri
sk

-
-

-

(*
)T

iı
e

fa
ct

o
rs

[h
at

in
cr

ea
se

cr
ed

ib
il

it
y

su
ch

as
gu

ar
an

te
es

re
ce

iv
ed

ar
e

no
t

ta
ke

n
in

to
ac

co
un

t
in

d
et

en
n
in

at
io

n
o
fa

m
o
u
ıı

t.

58



(Convenience Translation irna English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

iSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 28 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instrumcnts (cont’d)

(e) Foreign curreney risk management

As of 31 December 2015, stated in Note 2.7.8 the foreign currency position of the Company in terms
of original currency is calculated as it as follows:

3! December 2015
TRY TRY EURO iapanese Yen

(Total in (Odginal (Oıiginal (Oricinni

reporting currency) cununcy) euıtencv) eunenL-v>

1. Tnde receivables 100415 19.600 25.333

2a Monutan’ financial sets 1741 1.538 981 2910

2b. Non- moneuey finoncıal sds - -

3 Other 112009 18.845 29.319

4. Cumnt üsseis <1+2+3) 217.165 39.993 55.733 2.910

5. Traic rcceivablc,s . . - -

6a Monetan’ finmıcial tscts . - -

6b. Non- monetan financıal scts - -

7. Othet 24.808 21.263 1.116

8. Non-current USSC1S (56+7) 24.808 21.263 1.116

9. TortU assets (4r8) 241.973 61.256 56.819 2.910

10. Trale payabl 166.138 154.019 3.814 -

Il. Financial liabilitiis 192.483 86.318 28.436 653.971

12a Othermonetaıy Iinancid Iiabilities 94.958 92615 457 -

12b. Other non-monetar linancial Iiabilitics 206.444 206 444 . -

13. Current IiabiIitk (10—11+12) 660.023 539.456 32.717 653.971

14. Trale payabI . -

15. Financial Iiabilitics 121.537 3962 32.047 653.778

16a 010cr monetav financial IiabiIiti 205.385 205.385

16b. Otlıcr non-ınonetan financiai IiabıIııı . . -

17. Non-current Iinhililits (14+15+16) 326.922 209.347 32.047 653.778

18. Total Iiahili6t (13+17) 986.945 748.803 64.764 1.307.749

19. Net nssetllinhility position of off-holunce sheel derivnüve
flnnncinl inslwmtnts (19n-19h) (883.204) (11224) (274.118>)

19a OIbalanır ShL* Wifl cUnencv daivı,c nmıcıal sets 156.598 68.178 27.826
190 ObaJanee shcet elOn cllotncy dcrivi4ive linimcial Iiabilitiet (1 039 802) 80302 301 926

20. Net foreign nırrencv assculiahilitv position (9-18+19) (1.628.176) (699.771) (282.015) (1.3(13.839)

21. Net foreign curren ey asset / ilahi Itv posi hun of ıncın vtaıy
iterns (t+2a+5+6a-l0-lI-12n-14-15-lGıı) (675335) (521.211) (38.350) (1.3(14.839)

22 Pale valuc ofderıvative financial ınstmmcnts uscd in brcign
CUTWJIC%’ Iıedge 38,900 38,900

23, Iledood kıreign curwncv assets 1,039,802 80 402 301.926

24. I’Iedged knciun CUrTLmLy liahilihios 156.598 68.178 27,826 -

25. Epons 796.519

26. Irnports 2.853,582

59



(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMiR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are cxpressed as Thousand Turkish Lira CTRY Thousand”) unless olhenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 28 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Addifional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(e) Foreign currency risk management (cont’d)

As of3l December 2014, the foreign currency position of the Company in terms of original currency
is as follows:

31 December 2014
TRY TRY EURO Japiinese Yen

(Total in (Ofiginal (Originıd (Original

repofling cuwency) curreney) currency) currency)

1. Trade receivables 18.618 8.183 3.604
2a Monctmy financial assets 1.374 1.291 26 22
2b. Non- monetary hnaneid assets .

3. Other 3.831 3.825 2

4. Current assets (1+2+3) 23.853 13.600 3.632 22

5. Trwle receivables .

ü. Monetaiy financial assets . . -

6b. Non- monctaıy inancial assets .

7. Other 28.465 27.169 460 -

8. Non-current usseis (5+6+7) 28.365 27.169 460 -

9. ToPal assets (3+8) 52.318 40.768 4.092
10.Tradepayables 115.451 111.148 1.524
Il. Financial Iiabililics 210.131 104.925 32.811 654.092
12a OtIıer monetaıy financial liabilitles 110.948 110.313 225

12b. Other non-moneltuy financial Iiabilities 72,461 72.461

13. Curreat IjabiIi(ies (10+11+12) 508.991 398.837 33.560 653.092

14. Trade payables .

15. Finimcial Iiabilities 260.116 64.276 60.461 1.307.556
l6a Othermonetaiy financial liabilities 210.096 210.096 . -

l6b. Other non-monelaıy financial liabilitics - -

17. Non<urrenl Iiabilities (13+15+16) 470.212 274.372 60.461 1.307.556
1%. ToPal liabilitles (13+17) 979.203 673.219 95.021 1.961.638
19. et assevliabilily position o[ off-balance sheet denyative
financiııl instnıments (19a-19b) 118.309 576 41.739
19a Uli-balance shcet ljnigfl currency dcnvatıve hnmicial assets 236.666 118.933 31.739
19h. OWbahmce sheet reiun cunency derivative linancial Iiabilities 118.357 118.357

20. Net foreign curreney assedliability position (9-18+19) (808.576) (631.875) (49.191) (1.961.626)

21. Net foreign eti rmncy asset / liobiliiy position of monelaiy

items (l+2a+5+6a-I0-I I-l2a-13-l5-16n) (886.720) (590.984) (91.391) (1.961.626)

22. Fair valuc ofdcdvative inancial inslnımcnts used in treiun

currenc3’ hedge 37064 37064 . -

23. Hedged treign cunuıcy assets 118.357 118.357 . -

24. llcdued reign cuıwncy Iiabilities 236.666 118.933 41.739

25. Exports 766.636

26. Impurts 2.794.959
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

iSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts am exprcsscd as ThoLısand Turkish Lira ÇTRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 28 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF MSKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about financial instruments (cont’d)

(e) Foreign cureney risk management (cont’d)

The following taNe shows the Companys sensitivity to a 10% (+1-) change in the TRY, USD, EURO
and Japanese Yen. 30% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk intemally lo
key managemeni personnel and represents rnanagement’s assessrnent of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

As of 3! December 2015 asset and liabiliiy balances are translated by using the following exchange
rates: TRY 2,9076 = VS $ I.TRY 3,1776 = EUR 1 and TRY 0,0241= JPY 1(31 December 2014:
TRY 2,3 189 = VS $ 1,TRY 2,8207 = EUR I and TRY 0.0193= JPY 1)

31 Deeember 2015

1- TRY net assedliability
2- Hedged portion from TRY risk (-)
3- Effect of capitalintion (-)
4- TRY net effect (1+2+3)

5- VS Dollars net assedliability

6- Hedged portion from Vs Dollars risk (-)
7- Effect of capitalization (-)
8- VS Dollars net effeet (5+6+7)
9- Euro net assedliabilitv

30- Hedged portbn from Euro risk (-)
Il- Effect of capitalization (-)
12- Euro net effect (9+10+11)

13- Jap. Yen net asseUliabilitv

34- Hedged portion from Jap. Yen risk (-)
15- Effect of capitalization (-)
16- Jap. Yen net effect (13±14+15)

TOTAL (4+8+12+16)

Proft’(Ioss) before tax

Appreciation of
forein currency

(68.755)

in addition to dıe Cornpany’s foreign currency sensitivity to a 10% (+1-) ehange in TRY, TRY 88.908
thousand of income / (TRY (72.743) tlıousand expense) wiil occur due to the decrease/ (increase) in
deferred tax base (3! December 2014: TRY 91.936 thousand income / TRY (75.221 thousand
expense).

Depreciation of
foreign currencv

68.755
6.818 (6.818)

(61.937) 61.937

(2.515) 2.535

8.842 (8.842)

6.327 (6.327)
(3.142) 3.142

(3.142) 3.142

(58.752) 58.752
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(Convenience Translation irna English of Financial Statements Originally Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE F[NANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Thousand Turk-ish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless othenyise indicated.)

NOTE 28 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DEIUVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about fınancial instrumcnts (cont’d)

(e) Foreign currency risk management (cont’d)

31 December 2014

1- TRY net assetlliability
2- Hedged portion from TRY risk (-)
3- Effect of capitalization (-)
4- TRY net effect (1+2+3)

5- US Dollars net asseUliability
6- Hedged portion from US Dollars risk (-)
7- Effect of capitalization (-)
8- US Dollars net effect (5+6+7)
9- Euro net assedliabilky
10- Hedged portion from Euro risk (-)
Il- Effect of capitalization (-)
12- Euro net eftect (9±10+11)
13- Jap. Yen net asseUliability
14- Hedged portion from lap. Yen risk (-)
15- Effect of capitalization (-)
16-Jap. Yen net effect(13+14+15)

TOTAL (4+8+12+16)

(t) Liquidity risk management

Profıd(Ioss) before tax
Appreciation of Depreciation of

foreign currency foreign currency

(63.245) 63.245
11.893 (11.893)

(51.352) 51.352

(25.649) 25.649
11.773 (11.773)

(13.876) 13.876
(3.795) 3.795

(3.795) 3.795

(69.023) 69.023

Ultirnate responsibiliiy for Iiquidity risk managernent rests wiih the Board of Directors. which has
built an appropriate Iiquiditv risk management framework for the management of the Compan’s
short. medium and Iong-term funding and iiquidity management requirements. The Company
manages liquidity risk by corninuouslv monitoring forecasted and actual cash flows and marching the
maturity protiles of tinancial assets and Iiabilities and maintaining adequate funds and reserves.

Liguiditv risk tabies

Conservative Iiquidity risk rnanagement ineludes maintaining suffıcient cash, availability of sufticient
amount of borrowings and fıınds and ability to senle market positions.

The Company manages its funding of actual and forecasted financial obligations by maintaining the
availability of suffıcient number of high quality ban providers.

The folbowing table details the Company’s expected maturity for its derivative and non derivative
financial Iiabilities. !nterests wlıiclı wiil be paid on borrowings in the future are included in the
relevant colıımns in the following table.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

ISKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts am expresscd as Thousand Turkish Lira (“TRY Thousand”) unless olherwise indicated,)

NOTE 28 - NATURE AND LEVEL OF İUSKS DERIVED FROM FINANCİAL
INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Additional information about Jinancial instruments (cont’d)

(g) Interest rate risk managernent

The majority of the Company’s borrowings are based on fioating interest rate terms. in order 10

manage the exposure to interest rate rnovements on certain portion of the bank borrowings, the
Company uses interest rate swaps and ehanges floating rates to flxed rates.

Furihermore, for borrowings denominated in foreign currencies, except for VS Dollars, the Company
minimizes its interest rate risk by leveraging in foreign currencies that bear Iower interest rate. in
addition, a higher interest rate is applied to the trade receivables with a maturity when compared to
the inlerest rate exposed for İrade payables.

Jızlerest taZe sensin v/a’

The foliowing sensitivity anaiysis 15 based on forecasted interest mte changes for the Iiabilities
denoıninated in variable interest rates. The infomiation detalis the Company’s sensitivicy to an
increase/decrease of 0.50% for VS Dollars and EURO, 0,25% for Japanese Yen and 3.00% for TRY
denorninated interest rates.

Since the principal payments of the loans with floating interest ntes are not affected from ehanges in
interest tines, the risk exposure of the Company loans is measured using a sensitivity anaiysis instead
of a Value at Risk calculation.

Interest Position Table

31 December 3! December

2015 2014

Floating Interest Rate Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities 713.682 1.000.995

For the year round, if the VS Dollars. EURO and Japanese Yen denominated interest rates
increase/decrease by 100 base points in TRY, 50 base points in US Dollars and EVRO and 25 base
points in iapanese Yen respectively ceteris paribus. the protit before taxation and non-controlling
interest after considering the effect of capitalization and hedging wvuld be lower/higher TRY 2.496
thousand (31 December 2014: TRY 3.033 thousand).
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originally lssued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expresscd as Thousand Turkish Lira rTRY Thousand”) unless othenvise indicaled.)

NOTE 29 - FINANCİAL INSTRUMENTS (FAİR VALUE AND FINANCİAL RİSK
MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES) (cont’d)

Mditional informatiou about fınancial instruments (cont’d)

Categories of the Fınancial instruments and İheir fair values (cont’d)

Financial assets and Iiablities at fair valuc Fair value level as of reportinı date

31 December 2015 Level I Level2 LeveI3
Financial assets and Iiablities at fairvaluc
through profit / Ioss
Derivative fınancial assets 52.914 52.914 -

Derivative fınancial Iiabilities (14.015) . (14.015) -

Financial assets and Iiablities at fair valuc
tlırouglı other comprehensive
income / expense

Derivative fınancial assets 10.182 10.182 -

Derivative fınancial Iiabilkies (25.257) - (25.257) -

Total 23.824 - 23.824

____________

Financial assets and Iiablities at fair vaine Fafr value level as of reportinçz dale

31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets and Iiablities at fairvaine
through profıt / loss

Derivative financial assets 49.443 - 49.443

Derivative fmancial Ibbilities (12.379) - (12.379)

Financial assets and Iiablities nt fairvaine
through other comprehensive
i come/expense

Derivative fınancial assets 4.513 - 4.513
Derivative fınancial Ibbilities (11.500) - (11.500) -

Total 30.077 - 30.077

____________

First Level: Quoted (fon adjusted) prices in active markets For identical assets or Iiabilities.

Second Level: Other valuation techniques for which al! inputs which have a signiticant effect on the
recorded Fair value are observable. either directly or indirectly.

Third Level: Valuation techniques which use inputs which have a signiflcant effect on the recorded
fair valııe that are not based on observable market data.
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(Convenience Translation into English of Financial Statements Originaliy Issued in Turkish — See Note 32)

İSKENDERUN DEMİR VE ÇELİK A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCİAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

(Amounts are expressed as Tlıousand Turkish Lira (TRY Thousand”) unless othençise indicated,)

NOTE 30- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

A letter of intent was signed for a 50:50 partnership with the German teehnology company The Linde
Group in order to establish a new air separation unit in the Company that wiil supply the additional
industrial gases required for the Company’s production and to reduce the costs with an effective and
efficient management. With this new ıınit to start its operations in less than 20 months thanks to this
agreement, which is the first international joint venture of Erdemir Group in its 50-years of history,
İsdemir’s oxygen production capacity and nitrogen production capacity wili increase by 14% and
45%, respectively.

NOTE 31- ADDITİONAL INFORMATİON FOR CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

Details of changes in working capital for the periods
January —31 December 2014 are as follows:

Current trade receivables
I nventories
Other short term receivables / current assets
Other long term receivables / non current assets
Current trade payables
Other short term payables / liabilities
Other long term payables / liabihties

between 1 Januaıy —31 December 2015 and 1

1 January 1 January
31 December 2015 31 December 2014

220.211 48.122
279.135 355.608
(15.713) (1.189.189)

41.625 31.646
20.263 (48.124)

(34.964) (438.442)
(8.467) 11.386

502.090 (1.228.993)

NOTE 32 - OTHER ISSUES AFFECTING THE CONWANY’S FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
MATERIALLY OR THOSE REQUIRED TO BE DISCLOSED FOR A CLEAR,
UNDERSTANDABLE AND INTERPRETABLE PRESENTATİON

Convenience translation to Engiislı:

As at December 31, 2015, the accounting principles described in Note 2 (defined as Turkish
Accounting Standards/Turkish Financial Reporting Standards) to the accompanying financial
statements differ from international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS”) issued by the
international Accounting Standards Board with respect to the application of infiation accounting,
certain reciassifications and also for certain disciosures requirement of the POA/CMB. Accordingly,
the accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations in accordance with IFRS.
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